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The Juroku Bank Group provides comprehensive financial services in Greater Nagoya, the third largest region after Tokyo and Osaka, 
primarily covering Gifu and Aichi Prefectures. These prefectures have clusters of automotive and other manufacturing companies that 
support Japan’s manufacture. The Group’s growth is closely related to the region’s growth.

New infrastructures being developed in the region include Tokai-Kanjo (ring) Expressway connecting Gifu, Aichi and Mie Prefectures 
and a longer-term project, Linear Chuo Shinkansen (SCMAGLEV), which are expected to have positive impacts on the region’s economy.

 Industrial Structure: Region Supporting Japan’s Manufacture

 Economic Zone:  Expectations of Extensive Economic Impact

Gifu and Aichi Prefectures are characterized with a large population with a high percentage of people working in manufacturing indus-
tries. The value of shipments of products manufactured in these prefectures is among the largest in Japan. They thus support Japan’s 
industries and manufacture.

The infrastructures being developed are expected to help revitalize the in-
dustry and hence the region is expected to enjoy extensive positive impacts.

Tokai-Kanjo Expressway being developed will connect Aichi, Gifu 
and Mie Prefectures in a circle

Travel time shortened

Tokai-Kanjo Expressway would function as a detour route for Tomei, Meishin, Chuo, Tokai-
Hokuriku Expressways when they are congested or have an accident and as an alternate route in the 
event of a large-scale natural disaster.

7.6% of Japan’s population

Launch of Linear Chuo Shinkansen (SCMAGLEV) [A super mega-
region initiative based on a huge economic zone being created along 
the SCMAGLEV]

Shipment value of manufactured products
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(Trillions of Yen)
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Super Mega-region

Tokai-Kanjo Expressway

Gifu Prefecture: 1.99 million
Aichi Prefecture: 7.55 million = 9.54 million (2019)

Shinagawa  Nagoya
Approx. 1 hr. 30 min.   Approx. 40 min.
Shinagawa  Gifu Prefecture station
                       (Nakatsugawa City)
Approx. 2 hr. 30 min.   Approx. 34 min.

Gifu Prefecture: approx. ¥6 trillion
Aichi Prefecture: approx. ¥47 trillion

Source:  Census of Manufacture 2017, Ministry 
of Economy, Trade and Industry

Almost equivalent to Sweden’s 
population (9.48 million)

High percentage of 
manufacturing sector
Gifu Prefecture: 28.3%
Aichi Prefecture 37.7% (2016)

Significantly exceeding the nationwide 
average of 21.5%

Gross prefectural product
Gifu Prefecture: Approx. ¥7.6 trillion
Aichi Prefecture: Approx. ¥39.4 trillion
= Approx. ¥47 trillion (2016)

Accounts for 8.6% of Japan’s GDP

Japan’s largest trading port
Total amount of exports from the Port of Nagoya 
¥12,480.0 billion (2018)

Largest port in Japan

Largest in Japan
Share of the two prefectures’ 
total shipment value in that 
of Japan: 16.5%
(Aichi alone accounts for 
14.7%)

Travel time shortened
Access improved

Forming dual networks with the Tokaido 
Shinkansen bullet train to provide an alterna-
tive route and thereby to prevent suspension of 
economic activities in the event of a contingency

Gifu

Aichi

Mie

Forward-Looking Statement

This annual report contains certain forward-looking statements. Those forward-looking statements are subject to risks and uncertainties, and Juroku 

Bank’s actual results may differ from those described in the forward-looking statements. We are under no obligation, and expressly disclaim any 

obligation, to update or alter our forward-looking statements, whether as a result of new information, future events, or otherwise.

PROFILE

Head Office

The Juroku Bank, Ltd., has its business base in Gifu and Aichi prefectures, the 
industrial center of the Chubu region of Japan. During the over 140 years since its 
founding in 1877, it has played a pivotal role as a leading financial institution in its 
area.
We will continue to follow our philosophy of “serving our community by fulfilling 
our social mission as a financial institution.” We will also pursue reforms by staying 
open-minded, managing our operations rationally and steadily, creating a strong 
management style through stronger earnings power, and improving our personnel 
and organization.
The head office of the Bank is located in Gifu prefecture. The Bank has 162 domestic 
branch offices, mainly in Gifu and Aichi prefectures, as well as representative offices 
in Shanghai, Singapore, Bangkok and Hanoi. On a consolidated basis, as of the end  
of March 2020, the Bank had total deposits of ¥5,610.7 bil (US$51,554 mil), total  
assets of ¥6,472.5 bil (US$59,473 mil), and a capital ratio of 9.27% based on domestic 
standards.

Millions of Yen Thousands of
U.S.Dollars

For the Fiscal Year 2020 2019 2020

Total income ¥ 106,863 ¥ 104,447 $ 981,926

Total expenses 87,588 88,383 804,815

Net Income Attributable to Owners of the Parent 12,862 10,658 118,184

Cash dividends (2,615) (2,615) (24,028)

At Year-End
Total assets ¥6,472,454 ¥6,369,157      $59,473,068

Loans and bills discounted 4,345,574 4,304,066 39,929,927

Securities 1,251,602 1,345,422 11,500,524

Deposits 5,610,659 5,492,227 51,554,342

Total equity 366,404 370,199 3,366,755

Cash Flows
Net cash provided by (used in) operating activities ¥ 84,244 ¥ 180,627 $ 774,088

Net cash (used in) provided by investing activities 63,122 (35,609) 580,006

Net cash used in financing activities (3,734) (3,136) (34,311)

Cash and cash equivalents, end of year 629,152 485,525 5,781,053

Note: Amounts stated in United States dollars have been computed, solely for convenience, at the rate of ¥108.83 = US$1, the approximate rate of 
exchange at March 31, 2020.

The Juroku Bank, Ltd. and Subsidiaries       Year Ended March 31, 2020

inancial Highlights (Consolidated)F

005_9337401372009.indd   4-39 2020/09/10   16:54:15

1

otential of the Regional EconomyP



Yukio Murase
President, The Juroku Bank

Review of The 14th Medium-
Term Management Plan

The year ended March 31, 2020 (FY2019) was the last year of 

The 14th Medium-Term Management Plan that had begun in 

April 2017, and the year to successfully complete our “sales 

reforms” and “business reforms” in which we had put effort.

In April 2016, in addition to abolishing short-term 

numerical targets, we began trials of an activity evaluation 

system to evaluate the sales activity process itself, and 

implemented the system in full scale in conjunction with the 

start of the said medium-term management plan. 

Furthermore, we have been responding to increasingly diverse 

and sophisticated needs through alliances that had not been 

part of our conventional structure, including the 

commencement of our securities subsidiary’s sales activities 

and of collaborations for trust business. We have thus 

established our readiness for taking on challenges towards 

pursuing new earning opportunities.

Aiming to become a group providing 
comprehensive financial services, we 
seek to create a valuable future and 
achieve sustainable growth together 
with local communities and customers.

Item
At the beginning of the 

Medium-Term Plan
(Results for FY2016)

Target
(FY2019)

Results
(FY2019)

Net income (consolidated) ¥10.0 billion ¥10.0 billion ¥12.8 billion

Community presence
(daily-average deposits + daily average loans) ¥9,350.1 billion ¥10 trillion ¥9,950.0 billion 

Of which, daily-average deposits during 
the year ¥5,410.8 billion ¥5,700.0 billion ¥5,615.7 billion 

Of which, daily average loans during the 
year ¥3,939.3 billion ¥4,300.0 billion ¥4.334.3 billion 

Core capital ratio (consolidated)
Basel III fully implemented 8.84% Approx. 8.7% 8.94%

Item
At the beginning of the 

Medium-Term Plan
(Results for FY2016)

Long-term target Results
(FY2019)

ROE (consolidated) 3.0% 5%+ 3.7%

 Status of achievement of announced targets

 Targets to be achieved in a long term

(Billions of Yen)
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Furthermore, we have implemented a sales branch reform 

project to efficiently leverage our sales personnel and business 

hours, by centralizing sales branch administration and 

streamlining the head office organization. Through this 

reform, we reallocated human resources to growth areas such 

as securities, leasing and other businesses of Group companies.

To fulfill our responsibilities as “a financial group that is 

needed by customers and grows with customers,” we have 

pursed provision of customer-oriented, quality financial 

services. As a result of these “sales reforms” and “business 

reforms,” we have increased fees and commissions by ¥3.5 

billion and reduced expenses by ¥9.0 billion, generating an 

effect of ¥12.5 billion in the past three years.

Our net core operating profit has doubled in three years 

and OHR decreased by 15.5 percentage points, from 82.6% 

to 67.1%, both showing significant improvements.

Consequently, we have achieved the earning targets set for 

The 14th Medium-Term Management Plan, improving cost 

efficiency and hence strengthening our earning structure.

2 3
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Initiatives for COVID-19

When we were getting ready to commence The 15th Medium-

Term Management Plan, the outbreak of COVID-19 occurred, an 

unprecedented crisis that our communities had not experienced in 

the past. To overcome this crisis, prioritizing the health and safety 

of our customers, officers and employees, the Group has been 

making its best effort to provide the required financial services as 

much as possible, leveraging its experience and knowhow it has 

accumulated and paying more attention than ever to communities 

and customers.

Crowd funding “#Hidagyu beef at home”

Raised funds through crowd funding in cooperation with the 
local governments, businesses and other financial institutions 
in Hida region to support farmers, achieving the second 
largest* number of supporters ever in crowd funding (*as of 
May 13, 2020, according to CAMPFIRE)

  Subscription period 
April 29 – May 10
  Number of supporters 
10,002
  Total amount funded 
¥114 million

Proactive purchase of local products

Members of our sales branches are also considering what they 

can do and proactively purchase bento lunches and other take-

out meals, locally-produced agricultural and dairy products.

Number of consultations concerning 

COVID-19-related loans
11,764

Number of applications to change loan 

contracts due to COVID-19
176

Number of COVID-19-related loans 

executed
4,276

Amount of COVID-19-related loans 

executed
¥153.2 billion

[Of which, amount of interest free loans 

executed]
[¥47.2 billion]

(As of June 30, 2020)

Launch date Product name, etc.

Jan. 30 “Every support21: COVID-19 Plan” for businesses

Apr. 14 Juroku Private Bond to Support Health Care Workers

May 1 “All-round Consultation Desk” set up where an experienced ex-branch manager responds to inquiries related to COVID-19

May 19 Certified as a “financial institution providing one-stop financial support for SMEs in Nagoya” in cooperation with the 

City of Nagoya; provision of one-stop support commenced

May 20 Launch of “Loan related to COVID-19 supported by Gifu City” as one-stop financial support by financial institutions

May 20 Juroku Equity Loan

May 29 Juroku Tomoni Mirai Future Fund with Juroku structured

Examples of new cash flow support programs we have launched to support businesses that have been 
affected and damaged by the COVID-19 pandemic

Corporate loans

Donated facemasks to local medical institutions 

(*total 26,100 pieces as of the end of April)

Donated N95 medical-use facemasks to local medical 
institutions in Gifu and Aichi Prefectures that the Bank had 
stockpiled for contingencies

“Win against COVID-19!!  

Juroku Gifu Product Support Project”

Launched a special page in the Bank’s website (first regional 
bank in Tokai region) that introduces products produced in 
Gifu Prefecture

Societal contributions through a range of projects such as donation of medical facemasks to overcome the 

COVID-19 crisis together with the local communities

Contributions to the Local Communities

We would like to express our respect, gratitude, and a feeling of 

support for healthcare workers who are fighting COVID-19 at the 

front line. To grow with the local communities, in addition to 

financial support, each officer and employee of the Group will 

consider and put into action what we can do now. We are 

implementing and will continue a range of initiatives to support the 

local communities.

Privately-placed bonds with three-month maturity were issued, from which part of the fees was donated to designated medical 

institutions for infectious diseases located in Gifu and Aichi Prefectures.

Total amount of donation: 13 subscriptions totaling ¥4.56 million

 Juroku Private Bond to Support Health Care Workers

In addition to ordinary bank loans, equity capital funds provide long-term support for businesses in implementing their 

growth strategy and responding to the COVID-19 crisis.

 Provision of equity capital funds

<Juroku Equity Loan>

Type of loan:  Subordinated loan 

Borrowings that can be considered as equity

Loan amount: between ¥100 million and ¥300 million

Loan period: 10 years

Repayment condition: Lump-sum repayment on due date

<Juroku Tomoni Mirai Future Fund with Juroku>

Name: Juroku Tomoni Mirai Investment Limited Partnership

Fund size: ¥1.0 billion

Contributors and amount contributed:

   The Juroku Bank: ¥900 million

   Juroku Lease: ¥100 million

Contribution period: 10 years

Loan and investment period: 3 years
May be extended if necessary

4 5



Changing Business Environment

Formulation of The 15th Medium-Term Management Plan

Responses to the COVID-19 crisis have triggered our daily 

lives and our entire society to change drastically and rapidly. 

Furthermore, with respect to the local economy, there are 

concerns about a future decrease in market size reflecting 

declining and aging population, changes in industrial 

structure, and a decline in the number of companies due to 

the issues of business succession and lack of successors.

In order for the Group to continue to provide its services 

for, and grow together with, the local communities, it must 

work with the local communities towards helping realize the 

growth and affluence of the local community and customers 

in line with our primary management philosophy, self-

motivating with a proactive attitude to take action for 

contributions.

In April 2020, the Group commenced its “15th Medium-

Term Management Plan ~ Engagement to the future ~.” In 

this plan, we uphold a long-term vision towards our 150th 

anniversary in 2027, to be a “Total financial group that 

achieves sustainable growth together and creates the future of 

the region together.”

To realize this vision, we will seek to shift our business 

model by implementing three reforms: “business reform,” 

“operation process/channel reform” and “human resources/

organization reform” over the coming three years.

<Engagement Cycle>

In commencing this plan, we revisited the axis of our actions 

for gaining solid trust from customers-“engagement” - that 

we upheld in the previous medium-term management plan 

that commenced in April 2017.

The idea of engagement has been infused to our officers 

and employees. Everyone now considers how he/she could 

help customers. This approach could be, however, only one-

sided from the Bank without a deep and mutual 

understanding with customers.

The new plan will enforce “market-in” (market-oriented) 

ideas and actions to understand not only customers’ explicit 

and potential needs but also customers’ thoughts and feelings 

behind them.

To this end, the Group’s officers and employees are 

requested to drastically change their awareness and actions.

We will develop a culture where our people take on 

challenges in new initiatives without hesitation based on free 

thinking. Our officers and employees are encouraged to have 

four basic stances in their daily work: “Let’s say,” “Let’s 

listen,” “Let’s act” and “Let’s think” and to proactively 

exchange opinions with all stakeholders including customers, 

local communities, shareholders, other officers and employees, 

thereby running an “engagement cycle.”

<Together with Our Stakeholders>

While implementing the engagement cycle and shifting our 

business model through addressing the priority measures, we 

seek to contribute to creating a valuable future and helping 

realize a sustainable society by engaging with our customers 

and local communities, offering them support, and acting 

together.

VisionVision

CustomersCustomers

EmployeesEmployees Shareholders 
and investors
Shareholders 
and investors

Local 
community

Local 
community

Three
strategies

Three
strategies

Business reform
•Implementation of in-depth consulting
•Execution of responsibilities towards sustainable 
development in the region

Human resources/
organization reform

•Supporting the success of each employee
•Advance Group management structure

Let’s sayLet’s say

Let’s actLet’s actEngagement cycleLet’s thinkLet’s think

Let’s listenLet’s listenOperation process/
channel reform

•Restructuring of business process
•Construction of optimal channel

Capital Policy

Period: From April 2020 to March 2023

In regards to our capital, by accumulating profits 
and controlling risk assets, we will continue to 
maintain a sound core capital ratio and aim for a 
consolidated core capital ratio of 10% or above over 
the long term.

In the year ended March 31, 2020, we paid an 
annual dividend of ¥80 per share, with a ¥10 
increase as special dividend paid at year-end on top 
of the ordinary dividend of ¥70 for the year 
reflecting achievement of the earning targets for 
The 14th Medium-Term Management Plan leading 
up to the year ended March 31, 2020.

Priority measures

Business reform
1. Implementation of in-depth consulting
We provide in-depth consulting, enforcing a 
“market-in” (market-oriented) approach to fully 
understand customer needs and thereby 
contributing to realizing growth and affluence of 
our customers and the local communities.

2.  Execution of responsibilities towards 
sustainable development in the region

We proactively engage with what the local 
communities are facing now and in the future 
and fulfill our responsibilities towards realizing 
the sustainable growth of the local communities 
by mobilizing the Group’s management 
resources and leading initiatives for helping solve 
the issues community-wide.

Operation process/channel reform
3. Restructuring of business process
We review our operation processes extensively 
from the front-office operations to the back-office 
to secure human resources for growth areas and 
increase productivity by leveraging digital 
technologies.

4. Construction of optimal channel
We develop an optimal channel structure that 
meet our customers’ diverse needs, including 
expanding transactions through non-face-to-face 
channels and enhancing our consulting function 
through face-to-face channels, thereby providing 
customers with convenient and comfortable 
services.

Human resources/organization reform
5. Supporting the success of each employee
We develop a work environment where each and 
every employee can play active roles by fostering 
the development of personnel with extensive 
experiences and high expertise as well as 
implementing initiatives for changing their 
awareness and behaviors.

6. Advance Group management structure
We seek to sophisticate the Group’s management 
structure by expanding our business domains to 
meet customer needs and establishing an effective 
governance framework.
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  The 15th Medium-Term Management Plan

A total financial group that achieves sustainable growth 
together and creates the future of the region together

Long-term vision

A total financial group that achieves sustainable growth 
together and creates the future of the region together

Long-term vision

 Numerical targets FY2022

Net income
(consolidated)

¥12.0 billion

Adjusted OHR
(non-consolidated)

Around 67%

 Long-term targets

ROE
(consolidated)

5% or more

Core capital ratio
(consolidated)

10% or more
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Initiatives for SDGs

In February 2020, we announced The Juroku Bank Group 

SDGs Declaration incorporating the spirit that “if the bottom 

prospers, then the top will also prosper” contained within the 

Bank’s “10 Employee Rules,” which we have inherited since 

the Meiji Era, which means only when customers and local 

communities grow, the Bank can grow. We believe this spirit 

is essentially aligned with the spirit and process of SDGs that 

aim for achieving the sustainable growth of society and 

companies that are part of society. Adopting the SDGs 

Declaration, we would like to further deepen our initiatives 

together with even more stakeholders, incorporating the said 

spirit we have succeeded from our predecessors as well as new 

perspectives.

Along with the adoption of the SDGs Declaration, we 

have also set four priority themes, taking into consideration 

Engagement to the future

Countermeasures against COVID-19 have triggered the emergence of new norms. This reinforces our stance of maintaining firm 

engagement with customers, local communities and other stakeholders towards helping realize the growth and affluence of our 

customers and the local communities. While seeking to further increase our corporate value, we will seek to meet expectations of 

customers, shareholders and all other stakeholders.

We appreciate your continued support in our endeavors.

societally important issues in particular as well as 

contributions the Bank can make to society through its 

business activities: revitalization and sustainable growth of 

the local economy; supporting the success of individuals; 

response to environmental issues and global warming; and 

upgrading Group governance. We have also selected seven 

areas of SDGs that we will address as priorities. Furthermore, 

we have formulated loan and investment guidelines based on 

the SDGs Declaration towards making investment judgement 

considering the environment and social issues, reflecting them 

to business performance evaluation, and thereby contributing 

to society’s sustainable growth.

In terms of the structure for driving the initiatives, the 

SDGs Promotion Council that I chair leads and manages the 

initiatives across the Group. It regularly monitors the progress 

in a cross-organizational manner and runs a PDCA cycle to 

further enhance the initiatives for addressing SDGs.

Priority measures in The 15th Medium-Term 

Management Plan that commenced in April 2020 reflect core 

themes such as “Execution of responsibilities towards 

sustainable development in the region,” “Supporting the 

success of each employee,” and “Advance Group management 

structure.” These themes are in alignment with the Bank’s 

key initiatives for SDGs. The priority measures being 

addressed in The 15th Medium-Term Management Plan will 

also lead to helping achieve SDGs we aim for.

In line with the adoption of the SDGs Declaration, we 

have increasing opportunities to share societal issues with 

members of the local communities and create common values 

together with them, based on SDGs as our common language. 

By promoting SDGs across the Group through our day-to-day 

activities, we are seeking to create the future of the local 

communities and help realize a sustainable society together 

with them towards our 150th anniversary.

Juroku Bank Group’s 
structure for  
promoting SDGs

15th  
Medium-Term 
Management 

Plan Business divisions

Juroku Bank Group companies

SDGs Promotion Committee
(Chair: Managing officer in charge of 

Corporate Planning Division)

Environment Management Committee
(Chair: Managing officer in charge of 
Corporate Administration Division)

 Juroku Business Service
 Juroku Research Institute
  Juroku Tokai Tokyo 
Securities
 Juroku Card

 Juroku Lease
  Juroku Computer 
Service
  Juroku Credit 
Guarantee

Control and 
instructions

Formulate policy 
for initiatives

Reporting

Progress management and reporting
Consider new initiatives

Cooperation

Control and 
instructions

Board of Directors

SDGs Promotion 
Council

Chairperson

Management Council members
General managers of headquarters

President

Juroku Bank Group

SDGs Declaration

The Juroku Bank Group continues to hold the spirit “if the bottom prospers, then 
the top will also prosper (prosper with customer)” that has been passed down since 
the Meiji era. By working to promote the SDGs as a group, we will contribute to 
creating the future in the region and realizing a sustainable society together.

For the purpose of local revitalization, we 
will create common value with customers by 
offering various solutions and aim for 
sustainable growth.

Based on the Juroku Bank Group 
“Environment policy,” we will make society 
sustainable through our business.

By strengthening compliance and boosting 
Group governance, we will strive to prevent 
money laundering and financing of terrorists 
towards a peaceful and fair society.

We prepare an environment that each 
employee can enjoy various activities with 
motivation.

Revitalization of the  
local economy and 
sustainable growth

Response to 
environmental issues and 
global warming

Upgrading  
Group governance

Supporting the success  
of individuals

Our approaches to SDGs
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At Juroku Bank, we believe that retaining the trust of our stake-
holders by conducting all of our activities in a sound manner is 
vital to our role as a financial institution. Therefore, we place the 
highest priority on building a solid organizational structure and 
establishing systems that continually reinforce corporate gover-
nance.
 In association with the entry into effect of the Companies 
Act, we established a Basic Policy related to the Establishment 
of an Internal Control System at a meeting of the Board of 
Directors held on May 24, 2006. Since that time, we have re-
vised this basic policy as necessary and in a timely manner, and 
have endeavored to develop and continuously refine the system 
to ensure the appropriate execution of business at the Bank and 
the corporate group comprising the Bank and its subsidiaries. 
Under this basic policy, we will pursue initiatives to enhance 
corporate governance.

Basic Policy on Strengthening Internal Control System

Supervisory Board is held at least once a month, in principle. 
To support the Audit & Supervisory Board Members, we have 
established the Audit & Supervisory Board Members’ Office, 
which monitors the execution of business operations objectively 
and ensures appropriate auditing functions.
 With regard to internal controls, the Audit & Inspection 
Division conducts internal audits, and at least once per year The 
Bank seeks outside opinions regarding the development and 
management of the internal control system.
 Based on these objective opinions, we work to further 
improve the internal control system. Moreover, to reinforce the 
compliance system, we have established a whistle-blower system 
and have improved the effectiveness of the system by using an 
external lawyer as the point of contact.
 With respect to the risk control system, we have established 
the Integrated Risk Management Council, the Compliance 
Council, and the Anti-Money Laundering Council, chaired by 
the President, in principle, held once in every three months, 
once a month, and once a month, respectively, as well as the Op-
erational Risk Management Council chaired by the Managing 
Officer in charge of Risk Management Division and held once 
or more in every half year. At these meetings, the appropriate-
ness of operations is reviewed and risk management is applied to 
minimize loss due to unforeseen circumstances.
 We have also signed consultation agreements with six law-
yers, who provide advice on legal matters and perform a variety 
of legal checks when necessary.
 In response to risks associated with cyberattacks, extreme 
weather and natural disasters, new strain of influenza, the 
prolonged COVID-19 crisis and other factors, the Bank has 
formulated business continuity plans to prepare for each of 
them, anticipating possible risk events. It continues to improve 
its business continuity readiness including by conducting first-
response drills as appropriate.
 The Bank’s accounts are audited by the independent audit-
ing firm Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu LLC (as of June 30, 2020). 
This firm provides accurate audits on the basis of appropriate 
information disclosure.

 Going forward, we will work to further enhance our cor-
porate governance standards and ensure the soundness of our 
ethical conduct and financial position.

Basic Policy

The Board of Directors comprises nine members including 
three Outside Directors (as of June 19, 2020) and it is held at 
least once a month, in principle, to deliberate and decide mat-
ters stipulated in laws and regulations and important manage-
ment issues, and it also monitors directors’ conduct of business 
operations by having each director report his/her own execution 
of duties at least once every three months, pursuant to Article 
363, Paragraph 2 of the Companies Act. Additionally, in order 
to further ensure the transparency and fairness of the Board of 
Directors’ decision-making activities, a Management Advisory 
Council has been established as an advisory body to the Board of 
Directors. The Council is chaired by an Outside Director, and a 
majority of its members are external figures.
 The Bank has adopted the executive officer system and en-
sures that executive officers appointed by the Board of Directors 
responsibly execute the business operations of the sections in 
their charge. The adoption of the executive officer system allows 
the Board of Directors to take on the functions of management 
supervision in a more effective manner, while also enabling 
quick decision making by the management team. In terms of 
important matters affecting the daily conduct of business opera-
tions, a Management Council, comprising the president and 
CEO, deputy president and director and managing executive 
officers, has been established to enable quick and bold decision 
making. 
 Furthermore, an Operational Audit Committee has been 
established to enhance the supervisory functions of the Board 
of Directors on the execution of business operations, thereby fur-
ther enhancing the corporate governance system.
 The Audit & Supervisory Board comprises four Audit & 
Supervisory Board Members, including two Outside Audit & 
Supervisory Board Members and two Standing Audit & Su-
pervisory Board Members (as of June 19, 2020). The Audit & 

Progress Thus Far

Incorporation are adhered to. In addition, directors are respon-
sible for steadfastly confronting any anti-social forces that pose a 
threat to social order and safety; thereby directors consolidate a 
system to sever all ties to these forces.
(3) The Bank’s affiliates make best efforts to pursue legitimate 
and fair business practices that respond to social obligations, 
based on their own basic policy and management philosophy 
that are adequate for the nature and scale of their business. In 
addition, the affiliates are responsible for the establishment of 
the Code of Ethics and Compliance Policy to ensure that busi-
ness is conducted in accordance with laws and ordinances as well 
as social norms.
2.   System for storage and management of information re-

lated to the execution of duties by directors of the Bank
To ensure efficient verification of proper business practices, regu-
lations will be created and followed on the handling and control 
of information and documents related to business operations (in-
cluding electronic records); adherence to these regulations will 
be monitored, and regulations will be revised when necessary.
 In addition, a system will be established to enable directors 
and Audit & Supervisory Board Members to view this informa-
tion and the relevant documents when necessary.
3.   Risk management regulations and other structures re-

lated to risk of loss at the Bank and its affiliates
(1) The Bank positions the risk management as an important 
duty to ensure the soundness and safety of business, and regula-
tions related to each type of risk, including a Comprehensive 
Risk Management Regulation, will be established in order to 
manage risks associated with the business of the Bank and its af-
filiates in an exhaustive and comprehensive manner. Efforts will 
be made to appropriately improve the measurement, evaluation, 
and management of risk by following these regulations. 
 An independent third party will regularly evaluate the 
Bank’s management of major risks, and the Bank will continu-
ally work to improve risk management level evaluations.
(2) In addition to designating one department to comprehen-
sively manage risk, individual departments will be made specifi-
cally responsible for each category of risk, ensuring effective risk 
management. In addition, an organizational structure will be 
established, including the Integrated Risk Management Coun-
cil chaired by the president and CEO and the Operational Risk 
Management Council chaired by the director in charge of the 
department responsible for comprehensive risk management. 
Risk management reports will be made to the Board of Direc-
tors on a regular basis, or as necessary.
(3) The following are risks to be managed at the Bank. When 
new risks arise, a department to handle them will be promptly 
established by the Board of Directors.
 1) credit risk, 2) market risk, 3) liquidity risk, 4) operational 
risk, and 5) money laundering and terrorist financing risk,  
6) other risks that could have a serious impact on the Bank’s 
business.
(4) In addition to establishing a Risk Management Council, the 
Bank’s affiliates will manage risks in a proper and comprehen-
sive manner, and set up a system to report any issues related to 
risk management to the Bank. The Internal Audit Department 
of the Bank conducts auditing of the Bank’s affiliates to assess 
their risk management.
4.   System to ensure the efficient execution of duties by 

directors of the Bank and its affiliates
(1) Duties of the Bank will be executed centered on the Basic 
Policy and an Action Plan. A Management Plan will be created, 
and guidelines based on this plan will be established for each 
six-month period.

We are currently making efforts to build an internal control 
system based on the policies described below.
1.   System to ensure that the execution of duties by di-

rectors of the Bank and its affiliates comply with all 
relevant laws, ordinances, regulations, and the Bank’s 
Articles of Incorporation

(1) Our Basic Policy establishes the Bank’s commitment to serve 
local communities by fulfilling its mission as a financial insti-
tution, and to seek business growth through sound practices 
founded on a broad and rational perspective.
(2) To implement this policy, directors and executive officers 
of the Bank are responsible for the establishment of various 
standards including the Code of Ethics and Compliance Policy, 
and for ensuring that business is conducted in accordance with 
these standards and that laws, ordinances, and the Articles of 

(2) Progress made in implementing these plans will be reported 
to the Board of Directors in a timely manner, and steps will be 
taken in response as needed.
(3) Items that should be taken up by the Board of Directors of 
the Bank will be clearly stated in regulations such as the Board 
of Directors Regulations, and important items will be discussed 
as necessary by the Management Council, which comprises man-
aging directors or above and other related personnel, to ensure 
that issues are sufficiently examined. In addition, Regulations on 
Decision-Making Authority Related to Operations will stipulate 
the appropriate delegation of authority to subordinates based 
on such factors as the importance of the operation, making the 
directors’ execution of duties more efficient.
(4) The Bank will reinforce collaboration with its affiliates and 
facilitate information sharing. In addition, the management 
of the Bank and representatives of its affiliates will exchange 
opinions on a regular basis in order to resolve various issues ef-
ficiently.
(5) The Bank will establish regulations for top management, 
organizations, risk management and others, and provide its af-
filiates with necessary information in order to have them create 
their own systems efficiently in compliance with these regula-
tions.
5.   System to ensure that the execution of duties by em-

ployees of the Bank and its affiliates complies with laws, 
ordinances, and the Articles of Incorporation

(1) In addition to positioning compliance with laws and ordi-
nances as one of our most important business responsibilities 
and establishing regulations such as the Code of Ethics and 
Compliance Policy, the Bank will establish a department to pro-
vide overall control. In addition, a Compliance Council, chaired 
by the president and CEO, will be created, and this council will 
be tasked with handling compliance-related issues. 
(2) In addition to establishing a Compliance Council, the Bank’s 
affiliates will manage and operate in-house compliance system 
appropriately and set up a system to report any compliance 
violation to the Bank. The Internal Audit Department of the 
Bank conducts auditing of the Bank’s affiliates regarding their 
compliance with laws, ordinances, and others.
(3) At the Bank and its affiliates, an in-house system will be 
created for reporting violations of laws and ordinances and 
other compliance-related issues, and a whistle-blower system 
that employs an independent lawyer to receive reports will be 
maintained. Efforts will be made to prevent or promptly detect 
problems such as violations of laws. 
6.   System to ensure appropriate operations of the corporate 

group, which is composed of the Bank and its affiliates
(1) An internal auditing agreement will be concluded with 
the Bank’s affiliates, and operations are audited by the Internal 
Audit Department of the Bank to ensure proper business opera-
tions by the corporate group, which is centered on the Bank. 
Operations at affiliates will be audited through various activi-
ties, including appointing officers or employees of the Bank as 
officers of affiliates and having them attend the meeting of the 
Board of Directors of the affiliates.
(2) The management of the Bank and representatives of its affili-
ates will exchange opinions on a regular basis to prevent prob-
lems such as inappropriate transactions between the Bank and 
its affiliates.
(3) When engaging in transactions with the Bank’s affiliates and 
other entities, steps will be taken to verify that the terms of the 
transaction conform to the arms-length principle.
(4) A whistle-blower system will be established at the Bank 
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and all affiliates, making it possible for parties such as affiliate 
employees to make reports or seek advice.
(5) A system will be created to ensure the reliability of the 
financial reporting of the Group, centered on the Bank.
7.   System to report matters related to the execution of du-

ties by directors of the Bank’s affiliates to the Bank
(1) By having officers of the Bank dispatched to its affiliates, the 
Bank will receive reports related to the execution of duties by 
directors of its affiliates at the meeting of the Board of Directors 
of the affiliates.
(2) The Bank will deliberate or request reports, on a regular 
basis or as necessary, to accurately understand business operation 
of its affiliates, pursuant to the Group Companies Management 
Regulation established by the Bank.
(3) The department undertaking overall control of the Bank’s af-
filiates and individual departments responsible for each affiliate 
will monitor the status of affiliates in a timely and appropriate 
manner, and promptly report any matters deemed important to 
the management of the Bank, while taking necessary steps.
8.   Items related to employees whose assignment to assist 

Audit & Supervisory Board Members of the Bank in 
their duties is requested by them

An Audit & Supervisory Board Members’ Office will be created 
to assist the Audit & Supervisory Board Members in the perfor-
mance of their duties, and at least one full-time employee will 
be assigned to work in that office. Upon obtaining the opinions 
of the Audit & Supervisory Board, decisions will be made on 
the positions and qualifications of employees to be assigned to 
engage in this work, and a roster of such employees will be cre-
ated.
9.   Ensuring the independence of the above employees from 

directors and the effectiveness of instructions given to 
those employees

The appointment, transfer, and evaluation of employees who as-
sist the Audit & Supervisory Board Members in their duties will 
be subject to the approval of the Audit & Supervisory Board. 
The said employees will solely comply with instructions and 
orders given by the Audit & Supervisory Board Members.
10.  System for officers and employees of the Bank and 

its affiliates to report to Audit & Supervisory Board 
Members of the Bank and a system for other reports to 
Audit & Supervisory Board Members

Officers and employees of the Bank and its affiliates and per-
sons who received reports from them shall submit reports and 
provide information in response to requests from the Audit & 
Supervisory Board or individual Audit & Supervisory Board 
Members. The following are the main topics of the reports and 
information to be provided.
(1) Department activities related to creating the Bank’s internal 
control system
(2) Activities of the Bank’s affiliates
(3) Matters that may inflict a significant loss on the Bank and its 
affiliates
(4) Significant accounting policies and standards and changes to 
them
(5) Content of disclosed earnings, projections, and other impor-
tant disclosure materials
(6) Serious violations of the laws and ordinances
(7) Operation of the whistle-blower system and notifications
(8) Circulation of documents such as draft proposals and the 
minutes of important conference/committee meetings
(9) Other items deemed necessary by the Audit & Supervisory 
Board Members

11.  System to ensure that a person who made a report in 
accordance with the preceding paragraph does not re-
ceive unfair treatment on the grounds of making such 
report

The Bank and its affiliates prohibit a dismissal or any other 
disadvantageous treatment of the person who made a report 
in accordance with the preceding paragraph on the grounds of 
making such report, etc. and take appropriate steps to ensure 
that such person will not receive unfair treatment.
12.  Matters related to treatment of expenses incurred in 

the execution of duties by Audit & Supervisory Board 
Members

In the event that Audit & Supervisory Board Members made a 
request for reimbursement of expenses incurred in the execution 
of their duties, it will be granted unless the expenses are proved 
to be unnecessary to the execution of their duties.
13.  System to ensure effective audits by Audit & Supervi-

sory Board Members
The representative director will regularly meet and cooperate 
with the Audit & Supervisory Board Members to ensure the 
effectiveness of audits, and will regularly exchange opinions on 
management problems and progress in auditing to ensure high 
accuracy.

Compliance System

Recognizing that the survival of financial institutions depends 
on trust, we put top priority on earning the firm trust of the 
general public.
 We are further strengthening our compliance system under 
our 15th Medium-Term Management Plan through our policy 
which is designed to “promote awareness of the crucial impor-
tance of compliance among our staff.”
 1) Earn the firm trust of the general public through the 

maintenance of high corporate ethical standards and 
awareness of the importance of legal compliance;

 2) Promote awareness of the crucial importance of compli-
ance among our staff; and

 3) Raise standards of compliance rigor still higher.
 To further enhance the compliance system that we have built 
to date, we formulate and implement a compliance program 
each fiscal year. Specifically, all departments regularly hold study 
meetings on compliance, and we have implemented curriculums 
related to compliance for various training programs in order to 
boost the awareness of compliance and ingrain a compliance-
oriented corporate culture. 

Compliance Council

Chaired by the president and CEO, consisting of managing 
directors and the general managers from relevant divisions, the 
Compliance Council examines, discusses, and issues directives 
concerning matters of compliance.

Compliance Office
(Risk Management Division)

As the entity responsible for overseeing compliance, the Com-
pliance Office promotes compliance programs and serves as the 
secretariat for the Compliance Council.

Inspection Section
(Internal Audit Division)

The section conducts audits and other investigations related to 
the compliance conditions in each division.

Compliance at Each Division

Compliance officers are appointed in each of the divisions to 
check the day-to-day compliance of those divisions.

Organizational Structure

Customer Protection Management System

The Bank set up a Customer Protection Management Policy 
in September 2007 to develop and establish a system to ensure 
customer protection. Under the Customer Protection Manage-
ment Policy, we have clearly stated protection measures that we 
had taken as part of compliance and risk management. We are 
focusing more heavily on customer-oriented management. The 
purpose of the policy is to improve the protection and conve-
nience of customers through the following initiatives:
(i)  Providing appropriate information and explanations on 

products and services for customers
(ii)  Responding properly to requests, consultation, inquiries 

and complaints from customers
(iii) Appropriately managing customer information
(iv) Properly managing outsourced operations 
(v)  Properly managing of conflicts of interest so avoid unfair 

detriment to the interests of our customers

In line with the top priority that we assign to ensuring the con-
fidentiality of our customers’ personal data, information security 
risk is addressed by the Bank’s Information Security Manage-
ment Rules. We have publicly announced our Declaration of 
Personal Information Protection (Privacy Policy).
 As stipulated in the aforementioned Security Manage-
ment Rules, we have also appointed a chief information officer 
at the Bank’s headquarters and an information officer in each 

Information Security, Management of Customer 
Information

Money Laundering and Terrorist 
Financing Risk Management Framework

There is a strong international pressure for financial institutions 
to prevent money laundering and terrorist financing (hereinafter, 
“Money Laundering, etc.”), amid increasing threats of interna-
tional terrorism and the internationalization and expansion of 
fund transfers by criminal groups and terrorists.
 The Bank has placed the prevention of Money Laundering, 
etc. as one of its most important management issues, and will 
aim to further enhance such risk management by constructing 
an effective risk management framework.

Towards a more enhanced management framework  
for money laundering and terrorist financing risks

department and branch. We are making every effort to educate 
employees about the handling procedures and to bolster their 
awareness of security issues so that we can ensure the maximum 
degree of protection for customer data in daily operations.

Organizational Structure

Chaired by the president and CEO, consisting of managing directors and the general 
managers from relevant divisions, the Anti-Money Laundering Council reports on 
problematic cases relating to the prevention of Money Laundering, etc., discusses 
policies on necessary responses, and issues directives to the divisions in charge.

Anti-Money
Laundering Council

Fully understanding policies, procedures, and plans, etc. 
related to countermeasures for Money Laundering, etc., the 
First Line accurately implements reduction measures 
commensurate with the risks.

First Line
(Business Divisions

and Branches)

Checks the autonomous risk management of the First Line, 
while concurrently providing information and answering 
questions.

Second Line
(Risk Management

Division, Operations
Administration Division)

Regularly performs audits from an independent position 
regarding the effectiveness of measures to prevent Money 
Laundering, etc. and the proper functioning of the First and 
Second Lines.

Third Line
(Internal Audit

Division)

The risk-based approach for Money Laundering, etc. counter-
measures involves identification and evaluation of Money Laun-
dering, etc. risks as well as implementation of effective measures 
to reduce such risks. At the Bank, we compile a risk evaluation 
document regarding the risk reduction measures formulated by 
applying the risk-based approach, and use it as a guideline for 
when each of the sales division and branch conducts business. 
The various products and services of the Bank that we provide to 
our sound customers should never be abused by criminals. The 
Bank aims to further enhance its risk management framework 
towards preventing Money Laundering, etc., thereby fulfilling 
social responsibility.

Risk-Based Approach
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Risk Management

The importance of risk management has grown as the risks con-
fronting financial institutions have become more complex and 
diverse. Recognizing risk management as crucial for safe and 
sound operations, we have established a Comprehensive Risk 
Management Policy and other policies and rules relating to risk 
management that enable an appropriate and prompt response to 
various types of risk.
 We have established the Risk Management Division to step 
up our commitment in this area. We aim to further strengthen 
our risk management system through use of the PDCA cycle, 
by laying down policy (planning), creating internal rules and 
organizations (doing), assessing results of these measures (check-
ing) and making improvements where needed (acting).
 In addition, to ensure that our risk management mecha-
nisms function effectively with regard to sections within the 
Group subject to auditing (the Bank’s head office divisions, 
branches and consolidated affiliates), regular, planned, on-site 
audits of such departments are carried out by staff of the Inter-
nal Audit Division, which is independent from business opera-
tion departments. In this way the Bank verifies the effectiveness 
of its risk management systems.

The Bank has formulated a comprehensive risk management 
framework by determining a Comprehensive Risk Management 
Policy and Rules.
 The Bank’s risk management does not stop at managing 
various risks individually, but extends a step ahead to control 
the total amount of risks to keep it within the range of distrib-
utable capital, which is defined as “core capital (full implemen-
tation basis) less allowance for doubtful accounts,” through the 
risk quantification using statistical methods, thereby enforcing a 
comprehensive risk management aiming at ensuring soundness 
of management.
 We adopt a flexible approach to required responses by 
getting the current state of such comprehensive risks checked 
by the Integrated Risk Management Council and Committee, 
which meet regularly and report directly to the Board of Direc-
tors, etc. 

Comprehensive Risk

For market risk, the Market Risk Management Rules have been 
established, which stipulates the policies for monitoring, control 
and mitigation of the risk, along with specific arrangements.
 The Risk Management Division manages interest rate risk 
related to deposits and loans, as well as the risk associated with 
securities, derivatives and other markets. Our current positions, 
unrealized gains/losses and risk indicators such as BPV and VaR 
are measured and evaluated on a daily or monthly basis and 
reported to management. From the perspective of managing 
assets and liabilities together, we hold the monthly Integrated 
Risk Management Committee, forecast interest rates, stock 
prices and exchange rates, as a set of measures to enable an 
appropriate response to risk.

Market Risk

We manage liquidity risk through our Liquidity Risk Manage-
ment Policies and Liquidity Risk Management Rules and regard 
stable cash flows as the primary objective. Moreover, we have 
in place a system (Liquidity Risk Contingency Plan) that can 
respond to a wide variety of circumstances promptly and appro-
priately.

Liquidity Risk

We have drawn up an Operational Risk Management Policies 
and Operational Risk Management Rules, with separate provi-
sions for administrative risk, system risk, legal risk, personnel 
risk, fixed asset risk and reputational risk. We implement nec-
essary measures for required responses by getting the current 
management status of such risks checked regularly by the  
Operational Risk Management Council and reported to the 
Board of Directors. For the important categories of adminis-
trative and system risk, we have drawn up the following sub-
policies and procedures.

Administrative Risk
We manage administrative risk through our own Administra-
tive Risk Management Policies and Administrative Risk Man-
agement Rules. While adapting to the growing diversification 
and complexity of banking operations, our administration has 
become more rigorous in an effort to retain and strengthen the 
trust of our customers.

Operational Risk

To appropriately adapt to changes in the credit risk in relation 
to assets held by the Bank, and to ensure stable profitability and 
maintain sound operations, we conduct management appropri-
ately with reference to our Credit Risk Management Policies 
and Credit Risk Management Rules.
 In order to objectively determine a borrower company’s 
credit state and its capacity to repay loans, we perform a credit 
rating system in a timely manner and reflect the result of the 
credit rating in our credit risk management. More specifically, 
we endeavor to maintain a sound asset base by implementing 
our own assessment of loan assets and by making appropriate 
provision for possible loan losses and write-offs based on the 
credit rating system.

Credit Risk

 Meanwhile, the credit rating system enables a quantification 
of the credit risk, controls concentration of risk with particular 
borrowers or industries, and further ensures profits that are bal-
anced by credit costs, and thereby enables the Bank to improve 
its credit portfolio.
 Regarding examination of loan applications, we have clearly 
separated the sales promotion and credit screening functions  
and undertake strict reviews and management under a policy 
of screening by borrower business sector. Individual cases are 
screened by verifying various aspects including the use of funds, 
income and expenditure plans, and investment outcomes, and by 
carefully examining a borrower’s resources and plans for repay-
ment.

System Risk
System risk refers to the risk of incurring a loss due to computer 
system failure, malfunction and other errors or system flaws and 
other deficiencies, as well as the risk of incurring a loss due to 
the improper use of computers. This includes “cyber security 
risk” that threatens the safety of computer systems and com-
puter networks as a result of cyber attacks. We have established 
a framework that swiftly responds to system failure through 
our Computer System Failure Action Rules and Center Failure 
Rules.
 In regards to cyber security incidents that are increasingly 
becoming a threat, the Bank has set up the Computer Security 
Incident Response Team (CSIRT), an internal body with its 

secretariat administered by the Risk Management Division and 
the Operations Administration Division, that is expected to stay 
alert in ordinary times and to promptly respond to and solve any 
incident.
 To prepare for contingencies that cannot be dealt with us-
ing our conventional risk management mechanisms, we have 
compiled a Business Continuity Plan, and have taken measures 
that would enable us to continue major business operations even 
under emergency conditions.

 At Juroku Bank, we recognize the importance of integrated 
risk management, and we will continue working to enhance the 
sophistication of our risk management system.

In response to the recent surge of risks associated with cyberattacks, extreme weather and natural disasters, new strain of influenza, the prolonged 
COVID-19 crisis and other factors, the Bank has formulated business continuity plans to prepare for each of them, anticipating possible risk events. It 
continues to improve its business continuity readiness including by conducting first-response drills.

Structure of the business continuity plan (BCP)
Rules on Business Continuity Readiness and Management Basic rules concerning the Bank’s business continuity plan and readiness

Basic Plan Provides a general concept of business continuity, the Bank’s policy and other basic matters
Crisis Response Plan Provides first responses commonly applicable to different risks and other basic matters

Large-scale Earthquake Response Plan Plan concerning responses to anticipated earthquakes
Large-scale Earthquake Response Plan (Response procedures for essential operations)
Large-scale Earthquake Response Plan (Version for the so-called Tokai Earthquake anticipated to occur in the Tokai region)

New Influenza Virus Response Plan Response plan anticipating the epidemic of new strain of influenza and other diseases
Core System Emergency Response Plan Response plan anticipating failures in the core system and other similar problems
Cyberattack Response Plan Response plan anticipating cyberattacks
Contingency Plan for Liquidity Risk Response plan anticipating actualization of liquidity risk

 In regards to COVID-19, the Bank set up an Emergency Response Task Force in its early stage based on the above-mentioned New Influenza Virus 
Response Plan and implements the following measures to prevent the spread of infection and concurrently to continue its essential operations that are 
needed for supporting people’s livelihood and continuing the Bank’s operations.
<Examples of the Bank’s business continuity and infection prevention measures>
• Working from home; staggered work hours; working in shifts; and splitting operations
• Partial changes in business days and hours; suspension of customer visits
• Ensuring sterilization of branches; installment of plastic shields at the counters; and social distancing between customers
 Concurrently, the Bank is implementing the following measures for helping maintain the region’s economic activities:
• All-round Consultation Desk for inquiries related to COVID-19 from business operators and mortgage loan customers
• Juroku web seminar on subsidy and benefits in relation to COVID-19
• Finance support utilizing the effectively interest-free loan system, etc.
• Finance support utilizing subordinated loans
• Simplified procedure for exceptionally revising some terms and conditions of mortgage loans in response to the COVID-19 pandemic

Business Continuity Plan
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 Overseas Business Support
<The Bank’s International Network.>
At Juroku Bank, utilizing our overseas network of four repre-
sentative offices and 15 overseas partnering financial institutions 
spanning 11 countries, we will capture new business opportu-
nities together with our regional customers in Japan through 
proactive support towards expanding their overseas sales chan-
nels and overseas local production.

<Supporting Overseas Business>
Business operators have a range of needs such as development of 
new sales channels and suppliers and local production in ASEAN 
or other areas where wages are lower. To meet their needs, we held 
14 events in FY2019 including exhibitions, business meetings, 
corporate exchange meetings and local study sessions, which were 
attended by delegates from approximately 170 companies.

< Communicating Overseas Trends to Regional Customers 
in Japan>

We periodically hold the “Juroku: Latest Asian Situation Report 
Meeting ~ Overseas Representative Report ~” to communicate 
Asia’s latest business topics and economic situations to our 
regional customers in Japan, which are presented mainly by the 
heads of our overseas representative offices.

Corporate Business Division
International OfficeShanghai Overseas

Representative
Office

Hanoi Overseas
Representative
Office

Bangkok Overseas
Representative
Office

Singapore Overseas
Representative
Office

 Juroku Tokai Tokyo Securities
In March 2018, the Bank reached an agreement with Tokai Tokyo 
Financial Holdings, Inc. (hereinafter, Tokai Tokyo FH) to enter 
into a comprehensive business alliance. Both based in the Tokai 
region, the Bank and Tokai Tokyo FH work jointly to strengthen 
their business base and implement initiatives for contributing to 
the local communities.
 In June 2019, Juroku Tokai Tokyo Securities Co., Ltd. (here-
inafter, Juroku TT Securities) was founded jointly by the Bank 
and Tokai Tokyo FH respectively holding 60% and 40% of its 
stock. Its four branches began their business in Gifu Prefecture.

FBC Shanghai 2019 Manufacturing Business Meetings Reporting meeting held in October 2019

Activities to Revitalize the Regional Economy

Juroku Bank’s Support for Overseas Business Development

Group Diversification Strategy

The Bank provides information about the status of its assets in 
three different ways. First, we conduct self assessment to calcu-
late appropriate write-offs and reserves by classifying borrowers 
according to their financial soundness. Second, disclosure based 
on “The Financial Reconstruction Law” is used to classify prob-

(Non-consolidated)

*1 Borrowers requiring caution, excluding substandard borrowers
*2 Portion of claims secured by collateral or guarantees

*3 Substandard claims consist of loans only.

Notes:

1. Amounts in asset self-assessment and claims disclosed under 
the Financial Reconstruction Law and the coverage of claims are 
rounded to the nearest 100 million yen. Amounts in risk-mon-
itored loans are rounded down to the nearest 100 million yen. 
Figures for ratios are rounded down to the first decimal place.

2. All credit items = Loans + Customers’ liabilities for acceptances 
and guarantees + Bonds issued through private placements cov-
ered by guarantees of the Bank + Foreign exchanges + Suspense 
payments with a similar nature to loans + Accrued interest.

3. Amounts in asset self-assessment are those after deduction of 
specific reserves for possible loan losses, and the amounts in 
parentheses are specific reserves for each classification.

4. The Bank does not implement partial charge-offs (direct deduc-
tion). If partial charge-offs were implemented, relevant figures 
would decline to the figures shown in brackets.

Asset Self-Assessment / Assets Disclosed under the Financial Reconstruction Law /
Risk-Monitored Loans under the Banking Law (as of March 31, 2020)

lem assets. Third, we disclose the value of Risk-Monitored Loans 
based on the Banking Law, which excludes non-loan assets such 
as foreign exchange, accrued interest and advance payments.

Risk-monitored loans
Loans only

(no other type of credit included)

Classification Loan balances

Bankrupt loans 3.1
[1.2]

Non-accrual loans 57.4
[52.6]

Past due loans
(3 months or more) 0.0

Restructured loans 1.9

Total 62.6
[55.8]

Ratio of risk-monitored loans to total 
loans

Figures in brackets are those after ap-
plication of partial charge-offs (direct 
deduction).

1.4%
[1.2%]

Asset Self-Assessment
For all assets

Borrower category
Balances of credits

Classification
I II III IV

Legally
bankrupt borrowers

3.2
[1.2]

2.7 0.5 —
(0.1)

—
(2.0)

Virtually
bankrupt borrowers

9.4
[4.6]

6.9 2.4 —
(1.0)

—
(4.8)

Potentially
bankrupt borrowers

48.2 28.1 10.9 9.2
(8.1)

Borrowers requiring
caution

Substandard
borrowers

2.3 0.2 2.1

Others*1
367.8 93.4 274.4

Normal borrowers
4,019.2 4,019.2

Total
4,450.1

[4,443.3]
4,150.6 290.4 9.2

(9.2)
—

(6.8)

Billions of Yen

Assets disclosed under the Financial Reconstruction Law
and coverage of the claims

For all claims
Classification

Balances of claims
Portion of claims

secured*2 Reserves Coverage ratio

Bankrupt and
quasi-bankrupt assets

12.6

[5.8]

4.7 7.9 100.0%

Doubtful assets

48.2 31.0 8.1 80.9%

Substandard loans*3

2.1 1.3 0.2 76.3%

Sub-total
62.9

[56.1]
37.0 16.2 84.6%

Normal assets

4,387.3

Total
4,450.1

[4,443.3]

Ratio of disclosed claims under the Financial Reconstruction 
Law (subtotal) to total credits
Figures in brackets are those after application of partial charge-offs 
(direct deduction).

1.4%
[1.2%] Customers

Local 
communities

The Juroku Bank Juroku Lease Juroku Card

Juroku Credit Guarantee Juroku Business Service

Juroku Tokai 
Tokyo Securities

Juroku Computer Service Juroku Research Institute

Improved 
customer 

convenience

Sustainable growth 
of the local 

communities

Cooperation between the eight Group companies
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 Digital Marketing in Cooperation with iBank marketing Co., Ltd.
New money service via Wallet+, a smartphone app
In April 2019, the Bank entered into a capital alliance with iBank 
marketing Co., Ltd., a subsidiary of Fukuoka Financial Group and, on 
December 17, 2019, began providing smartphone app-based Wallet+ 
service operated by the company.
 In approximately six months since the launch of the service through the Bank, the app has had over 50,000 downloads. It 
has had over 1 million downloads in total through the financial institutions providing the same service* since July 2016 when 
the provision of the service originally began.
 Through Wallet+, customers can enjoy the new experience of financial and non-financial services linked together, providing 
support ranging from money management to realizing their dreams and missions.
* Financial institutions providing Wallet+ (in Japanese syllabary order, as of April 30, 2020): Bank of Okinawa, Kumamoto Bank, Juroku Bank, Shinwa Bank, Nanto Bank, 

Hiroshima Bank, Bank of Fukuoka, Yamanashi Chuo Bank

New Topic

The Juroku Bank, Ltd. (as of June 30, 2020)

President and CEO
Yukio Murase
Deputy President
Naoki Ikeda
Director and Managing Executive Officers
Kimio Hirose
Yukiyasu Shiraki
Akihide Ishiguro
Director and Executive Officer
Shin Mishima
Outside Directors
Yuji Kume
Kikuo Asano
Satoko Ito
Managing Executive Officers
Koichi Tokoro
Katsuhiko Okuda
Executive Officers
Shigeki Fujii
Etsuro Ono
Hiroaki Sugino
Akito Yamashita
Tsutomu Niimi
Hirokazu Kusui
Eiji Kodama
Standing Audit & Supervisory Board Members
Naohiko Ishikawa
Shunsuke Uchigashima
Outside Audit & Supervisory Board Members
Shinji Ishihara
Takuo Yoshikawa

General Meeting of 
Shareholders

Audit & Supervisory 
Board

Board of Directors

Audit & Supervisory 
Board Members

Nagoya Main Office
Head Office

Domestic Branches (160)

Secretariat

Enterprise Support Division
Risk Management Division

Operational Reform Division
Corporate Administration Division

Corporate Planning Division

Business Integration Division

Corporate Business Division
Personal Business Division

Public Business Division

Audit & Supervisory Board Members’ Office
Internal Audit Division

Treasury and Investment Division
Operations Administration Division

Hanoi Representative Office
Bangkok Representative Office
Singapore Representative Office
Shanghai Representative Office

Internal Audit Board

Management Meeting

International Office

Aichi Business Division

The Juroku Bank, Ltd. (as of June 30, 2020)

rganization ChartO

Yukio Murase
President and CEO

Naoki Ikeda
Deputy President

Yukiyasu Shiraki
Director and Managing 
Executive Officer and 
Chief General Manager, 
Business Integration  
Division

Kimio Hirose
Director and Managing 
Executive Officer

Akihide Ishiguro
Director and Managing 
Executive Officer

Use Look Find Begin Achieve

Financial service Financial service

Pocket Wallet (covering day-to-day consumption)

[Debit payment] [Balance management]
[Small saving]

[Information contents] [Deposit with a specific
 purpose]

[Coupons; attracting
 customers]

Pocket Concierge (stimulating non-routine consumption)

Non-financial service Non-financial service

Functions 
and 

services 
provided

 Contributions to the Community by the JUROKU FOUNDATION FOR REGIONAL PROMOTION
The Foundation provides financial supports for regional revitalization activities conducted by local communities, including scholar-
ships and supports for arts and cultural activities.

<Ai Kayukawa Piano Recital>
Clara Saal Juroku Music Hall will commemorate its 5th anniversary in November 
2020. It has hosted over 20 concerts where members of the local communities 
enjoy music. Its rental hall is used over 30 times every year.
 In February 2020, the Hall hosted a piano recital with Ai Kayukawa, a pianist 
from Gifu Prefecture. The program consisted of works including those by Clara 
Saal, whom the Hall is named after, and her husband Robert Schuman. Ai’s two-
hour passionate piano playing filled the Hall with emotion.
 We will continue seeking to meet the expectation of local communities 
through arts and culture.

CSR Activities

 Juroku TT Securities has been gradually increasing its presence as a 
securities firm rooted in the local communities through responding to 
diverse and sophisticated customer consultations. Many customers in 
Aichi Prefecture have requested Juroku TT Securities to provide them 
with asset management services. To meet their needs, in April 2020, it 
set up its first branch in Aichi Prefecture, Nagoya Branch in the Head 
Office Business Division.
 This new branch is located in the Bank’s Nagoya Building, on the 
same floor as the Bank’s PLAZA JUROKU Nagoya Branch, a branch 
specializing in providing consulting service concerning asset manage-
ment and succession. They together serve as a business base built upon 
cooperation between the Bank and the Juroku TT Securities, the second 
of its kind after the Bank’s Ogaki Branch.
 Going forward, the Group will make concerted efforts to provide 
high value-added services beyond banking and securities services, 
strengthening its functions, branding and earning capability.
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Business Environment

Performance

Financial Position

During the fiscal year under review, the Japanese economy dur-
ing the first half recovered though only modestly due to uncer-
tainties in overseas situations such as U.S.-China trade friction. 
In the second half, export and production declined drastically 
due to the consumption tax increase, abnormal weather, and the 
COVID-19 pandemic that curbed global economic activities 
and the movement of people. Personal consumption, especially 
service consumption, decreased also reflecting the consumption 
tax increase and the COVID-19 outbreak that necessitated self-
quarantine.

In the region of the Bank’s core business, Gifu and Aichi 
prefectures, too, the COVID-19 pandemic caused drastic down-
turns in export, production and personal consumption since 
February 2020.

Against these backdrops, our business results for the fiscal 
year under review were as follows.

Ordinary income from banking operations increased by ¥104 
million year on year to ¥76,655 million owing to an increase in 
interest income reflecting a rise in interest income on securities 
and an increase in fees and commissions including corporate so-
lutions-related fees. Ordinary expenses decreased by ¥3,808 mil-
lion year on year to ¥58,132 million due primarily to a decrease 
in operating expenses in addition to a decline in interest expense 
recognized on statements of income. As a result, ordinary profit 
increased by ¥3,913 million year on year to ¥18,523 million.

In the leasing business, ordinary income increased by ¥1,699 
million year on year to ¥25,135 million, ordinary expenses in-
creased by ¥1,378 million year on year to ¥24,149 million, and 
ordinary profit increased by ¥321 million year on year to ¥986 
million.

In other businesses, including the credit card business and 
credit guarantee business, ordinary income increased by ¥1,407 
million year on year to ¥7,787 million, and ordinary expenses 
increased by ¥1,837 million year on year to ¥7,215 million, 
while ordinary profit decreased by ¥429 million year on year to 
¥572 million.

As a result, ordinary income on a consolidated basis in-
creased by ¥2,480 million year on year to ¥106,860 million, 
and ordinary expenses decreased by ¥740 million year on year 
to ¥87,362 million, while ordinary profit increased by ¥3,220 
million year on year to ¥19,497 million and net income attrib-
utable to owners of the parent increased by ¥2,204 million year 
on year to ¥12,862 million.

The Bank strived to provide customer-oriented quality service 
to fulfill its responsibility as “a financial group that is needed by 
customers and grows with customers.”

Our balance of deposits as of March 31, 2020 increased by 
¥103.9 billion to ¥5,683.7 billion, mainly due to an increase in 
deposits from individuals.

Further, we offered a wide range of products including pen-
sion insurance and investment trusts and met the various needs 
of individual customers. As a result, our balance of individual 
customer assets including deposits increased by ¥112.5 billion 
to ¥4,656.5 billion.

With regard to loans, the Bank worked to provide customers 
in the local community with stable access to funds. Our balance 
of loans increased by ¥44.0 billion to ¥4,376.7 billion due to 
such factors as increases in mortgage loans and other loans for 
individuals.

With regard to securities, while flexibly responding to 
changes in market conditions, the Bank built a portfolio that 
maintains the risk-return balance, and managed it based on 
the policy of expanding total profits over the medium- to long-
term. As a result, our balance of securities as of March 31, 2020 
decreased by ¥87.6 billion to ¥1,262.9 billion.

Net cash provided from operating activities amounted to 
¥84,244 million (¥180,626 million was provided in the previ-
ous fiscal year) mainly as a result of increases in deposits and 
borrowings from the Bank of Japan. Net cash provided from 
investing activities amounted to ¥63,122 million (¥35,608 
million was used in the previous fiscal year) mainly as a result 
of redemption and sales of securities. Net cash used in financing 
activities amounted to ¥3,734 million (¥3,136 million was used 
in the previous fiscal year) mainly as a result of dividends paid. 
As a result, the closing balance of cash and cash equivalents in-
creased by ¥143,626 million during the fiscal year under review 
to ¥629,152 million.

The Juroku Bank, Ltd. and Consolidated Subsidiaries      March 31, 2020

Millions of Yen
Thousands of

U.S. Dollars (Note 1)

ASSETS: 2020 2019 2020

Cash and due from banks (Notes 4 and 26) ¥ 632,783 ¥ 487,166 $ 5,814,417
Trading securities (Notes 5 and 26) 408 378 3,749
Money held in trust (Notes 6 and 26) 8,512 7,012 78,214
Securities (Notes 5, 11, 12 and 26) 1,251,602 1,345,422 11,500,524
Loans and bills discounted (Notes 7, 26 and 27) 4,345,574 4,304,066 39,929,927
Foreign exchanges (Notes 7 and 8) 7,979 6,456 73,316
Lease receivables and investments in leases (Note 25) 59,219 55,579 544,142
Other assets (Notes 9, 12, 26 and 28) 99,249 95,367 911,964
Premises and equipment (Note 10) 62,333 63,388 572,756
Goodwill 4,550 2,875 41,808
Intangible assets 4,075 4,361 37,444
Asset for retirement benefits for employees (Note 16) 2,332 3,890 21,428
Deferred tax assets (Note 24) 853 661 7,838
Customers’ liabilities for acceptances and guarantees (Note 11) 17,028 17,303 156,464
Reserve for possible loan losses (Note 26) (24,043) (24,767) (220,923)

Total Assets ¥6,472,454 ¥6,369,157 $59,473,068

LIABILITIES AND EQUITY:
Liabilities:
Deposits (Notes 12, 13 and 26) ¥5,610,659 ¥5,492,227 $51,554,342
Negotiable certificates of deposit (Note 26) 38,050 55,600 349,628
Payables under repurchase agreements (Notes 12 and 26) 140,754 186,071 1,293,338
Payables under securities lending transactions (Notes 12 and 26) 15,153 105,931 139,236
Borrowed money (Notes 12 and 14) 208,421 62,828 1,915,106
Foreign exchanges (Note 8) 982 966 9,023
Other liabilities (Notes 14, 15, 17, 25, 26 and 28) 53,124 49,960 488,137
Liability for retirement benefits for employees (Note 16) 6,353 6,471 58,375
Liability for retirement benefits for directors and Audit & Supervisory Board members 8 9 74
Provision required under the Special Act 2 — 19
Deferred tax liabilities (Note 24) 8,433 14,462 77,488
Deferred tax liabilities for land revaluation surplus 7,083 7,130 65,083
Acceptances and guarantees (Note 11) 17,028 17,303 156,464

Total Liabilities 6,106,050 5,998,958 56,106,313

Commitments and Contingent Liabilities (Note 27)

Equity (Notes 18, 19 and 31):
Common stock:

authorized, 46,000,000 shares in 2020 and 2019;
issued, 37,924,134 shares in 2020 and 37,924,134 in 2019

36,839 36,839 338,500

Capital surplus (Note 3) 51,435 50,190 472,618
Stock acquisition rights 161 160 1,479
Retained earnings 211,679 201,322 1,945,043
Treasury stock - at cost: 

555,674 shares in 2020 and 566,641 shares in 2019 (1,554) (1,585) (14,279)
Accumulated other comprehensive income

Unrealized gain on available-for-sale securities (Note 5) 39,918 53,699 366,792
Deferred loss on derivatives under hedge accounting (174) — (1,598)
Land revaluation surplus 13,925 14,035 127,952
Defined retirement benefit plans (Note 16) (1,997) (431) (18,350)

Total 350,232 354,229 3,218,157
Noncontrolling interests 16,172 15,970 148,598

Total Equity 366,404 370,199 3,366,755
Total Liabilities and Equity ¥6,472,454 ¥6,369,157 $59,473,068

See notes to consolidated financial statements.
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The Juroku Bank, Ltd. and Consolidated Subsidiaries      Year Ended March 31, 2020

Millions of Yen
Thousands of

 U.S. Dollars (Note 1)

Income:
Interest on:

2020 2019 2020

Loans and discounts ¥ 39,184 ¥ 39,705 $360,048
Securities 15,171 13,613 139,401
Other 407 445 3,740

Fees and commissions 21,447 20,181 197,068
Other operating income (Note 20) 28,562 26,178 262,446
Other income (Note 21) 2,092 4,325 19,223

Total Income 106,863 104,447 981,926
Expenses:
Interest on:

Deposits 657 1,003 6,037
Borrowings and re-discounts 287 369 2,637
Payables under repurchase agreements 1,940 2,457 17,826
Other 48 39 441

Fees and commissions 5,645 6,135 51,870
Other operating expenses (Note 5) 24,788 24,507 227,768
General and administrative expenses (Note 22) 48,410 50,038 444,822
Provision for possible loan losses 3,683 2,122 33,842
Impairment loss on long-lived assets 133 189 1,222
Other expenses (Note 23) 1,997 1,524 18,350

Total Expenses 87,588 88,383 804,815
Income before Income Taxes 19,275 16,064 177,111
Income Taxes (Note 24):

Current 6,072 4,336 55,793
Deferred (13) 553 (119)

Total Income Taxes 6,059 4,889 55,674
Net Income 13,216 11,175 121,437
Net Income Attributable to Noncontrolling Interests 354 517 3,253
Net Income Attributable to Owners of the Parent ¥ 12,862 ¥ 10,658 $118,184

Yen U.S. Dollars

Per Share of Common Stock (Notes 2.v and 30): 2020 2019 2020

Basic net income ¥344.22 ¥285.29 $3.16
Diluted net income 343.70 284.92 3.16
Cash dividends applicable to the year

Common stock 70.00 70.00 0.64
See notes to consolidated financial statements.

Millions of Yen
Thousands of

 U.S. Dollars (Note 1)

2020 2019 2020

Net income ¥ 13,216 ¥ 11,175 $ 121,437
Other Comprehensive (Loss) Income (Note 29):

Unrealized (loss) gain on available-for-sale securities (13,864) 768 (127,391)
Deferred loss on derivatives under hedge accounting (174) — (1,599)
Defined retirement benefit plans (1,566) 37 (14,389)

Total other comprehensive (loss) income (15,604) 805 (143,379)
Comprehensive (Loss) Income ¥ (2,388) ¥ 11,980 $ (21,942)
Total Comprehensive (Loss) Income Attributable to:

Owners of the parent ¥ (2,659) ¥ 11,671 $ (24,432)
Noncontrolling interests 271 309 2,490

See notes to consolidated financial statements.

The Juroku Bank, Ltd. and Consolidated Subsidiaries      Year Ended March 31, 2020

Thousands Millions of Yen

Outstanding
Number of
Shares of

Common Stock

Common
Stock

Capital
Surplus

Stock
Acquisition

Rights

Retained
Earnings

Treasury
Stock

Accumulated Other 
Comprehensive Income

Total
Noncon-
trolling
Interests

Total
EquityUnrealized Gain

on Available
-for-sale 

Securities

Deferred loss on
derivatives under

hedge  
accounting

Land
Revaluation

Surplus

Defined
Retirement

Benefit Plans

Balance at April 1, 2018 37,362 ¥36,839 ¥48,282 ¥130 ¥192,824 ¥(1,574) ¥52,723 — ¥14,490 ¥   (468) ¥343,246 ¥18,007 ¥361,253

Purchase of shares of 
  consolidated subsidiaries — 1,908 — — — — — — — 1,908 — 1,908

Net income attributable 
  to owners of the parent — — — 10,658 — — — — — 10,658 — 10,658

Cash dividends, ¥70.00 
  per share on common stock — — — (2,615) — — — — — (2,615) — (2,615)

Transfer of land revaluation surplus — — — 455 — — — — — 455 — 455
Purchase of treasury stock (8) — — — — (20) — — — — (20) — (20)
Disposal of treasury stock 3 — — — — 9 — — — — 9 — 9
Net change in the year — — — 30 — — 976 — (455) 37 588 (2,037) (1,449)
Balance at April 1, 2019 37,357 36,839 50,190 160 201,322 (1,585) 53,699 — 14,035 (431) 354,229 15,970 370,199
Purchase of shares of 
  consolidated subsidiaries — 1,244 — — — — — — — 1,244 — 1,244

Net income attributable 
  to owners of the parent — — — 12,862 — — — — — 12,862 — 12,862

Cash dividends, ¥70.00 
  per share on common stock — — — (2,615) — — — — — (2,615) — (2,615)

Transfer of land revaluation surplus — — — 110 — — — — — 110 — 110
Purchase of treasury stock (2) — — — — (4) — — — — (4) — (4)
Disposal of treasury stock 13 — 1 — — 35 — — — — 36 — 36
Net change in the year — — — 1 — — (13,781) (174) (110) (1,566) (15,630) 202 (15,428)
Balance at March 31, 2020 37,368 ¥36,839 ¥51,435 ¥161 ¥211,679 ¥(1,554) ¥39,918 ¥(174) ¥13,925 ¥(1,997) ¥350,232 ¥16,172 ¥366,404

Thousands of U.S. Dollars (Note 1)

Common
Stock

Capital
Surplus

Stock
Acquisition

Rights

Retained
Earnings

Treasury
Stock

Accumulated Other 
Comprehensive Income

Total
Noncon-
trolling
Interests

Total
EquityUnrealized Gain

on Available
-for-sale 

Securities

Deferred loss on
derivatives under

hedge  
accounting

Land
Revaluation

Surplus

Defined
Retirement

Benefit Plans

Balance at April 1, 2019 $338,500 $461,178 $1,470 $1,849,876 $(14,564) $493,421 — $128,963 $  (3,960) $3,254,884 $146,742 $3,401,626
Purchase of shares of 
  consolidated subsidiaries — 11,431 — — — — — — — 11,431 — 11,431

Net income attributable 
  to owners of the parent — — — 118,184 — — — — — 118,184 — 118,184

Cash dividends, $0.64 
  per share on common stock — — — (24,028) — — — — — (24,028) — (24,028)

Transfer of land revaluation surplus — — — 1,011 — — — — — 1,011 — 1,011
Purchase of treasury stock — — — — (37) — — — — (37) — (37)
Disposal of treasury stock — 9 — — 322 — — — — 331 — 331
Net change in the year — — 9 — — (126,629) (1,598) (1,011) (14,390) (143,619) 1,856 (141,763)
Balance at March 31, 2020 $338,500 $472,618 $1,479 $1,945,043 $(14,279) $366,792 $(1,598) $127,952 $(18,350) $3,218,157 $148,598 $3,366,755

See notes to consolidated financial statements.
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Millions of Yen
Thousands of

U.S. Dollars (Note 1)

Operating Activities: 2020 2019 2020

Income before income taxes ¥ 19,275 ¥ 16,064 $  177,111
Adjustments for:

Income taxes - paid (5,313) (4,404) (48,819)
Income taxes - refund 2 16 18
Depreciation 3,923 3,922 36,047
Impairment loss on long-lived assets 133 189 1,222
Interest income recognized on statements of income (54,762) (53,764) (503,189)
Interest expense recognized on statements of income 2,932 3,868 26,941
Net gain on securities (1,091) (2,365) (10,024)
Unrealized (gain) loss on derivatives (287) 122 (2,637)
Net decrease in reserve for possible loan losses (724) (412) (6,653)
Net increase in asset for retirement benefits for employees (745) (503) (6,845)
Net decrease in liability for retirement benefits for employees (50) (43) (459)
Net (decrease) increase in liability for retirement benefits for directors and 
  Audit & Supervisory Board members (1) 3 (9)

Net increase in provision required under the Special Act 2 — 18
Net increase in loans (41,335) (88,635) (379,813)
Net increase in deposits 118,432 49,253 1,088,230
Net (decrease) increase in negotiable certificates of deposit (17,549) 6,000 (161,251)
Net increase in borrowed money (excluding subordinated loans) 145,419 15,054 1,336,203
Net decrease (increase) in due from banks (excluding cash equivalents) 2,025 (870) 18,607
Net decrease in call loans and others — 1,000 —
Net (decrease) increase in call money and others (45,317) 87,198 (416,402)
Net (decrease) increase in payables under securities lending transactions (90,778) 105,931 (834,127)
Net increase in lease receivables and investments in leases (3,640) (4,079) (33,447)
Interest income - cash basis 55,915 54,420 513,783
Interest expense - cash basis (3,863) (4,177) (35,496)
Other - net 1,641 (3,161) 15,079

Total adjustments 64,969 164,563 596,977
Net cash provided by operating activities 84,244 180,627 774,088

Investing Activities:
Purchases of securities (439,772) (599,926) (4,040,908)
Proceeds from sales of securities 215,077 351,862 1,976,266
Proceeds from maturities of securities 295,175 213,452 2,712,258
Purchases of premises and equipment (1,208) (928) (11,100)
Purchases of intangible assets (785) (686) (7,213)
Proceeds from sales of premises and equipment 149 671 1,369
Payments from changes in ownership interests in subsidiaries that
  result in change in scope of consolidation (Note 3) (5,465) — (50,216)

Other - net (49) (54) (450)
Net cash provided by (used in) investing activities 63,122 (35,609) 580,006

Financing Activities:
Proceeds from sales of treasury stock 0 1 0
Acquisition of treasury stock (3) (20) (28)
Acquisition of treasury stock of subsidiaries (558) — (5,127)
Dividends paid (2,814) (2,623) (25,857)
Payments from changes in ownership interests in subsidiaries that
  do not result in change in scope of consolidation (Note 3) (359) (494) (3,299)

Net cash used in financing activities (3,734) (3,136) (34,311)
Foreign Currency Translation Adjustments on Cash and Cash Equivalents (5) 3 (46)
Net Increase in Cash and Cash Equivalents 143,627 141,885 1,319,737
Cash and Cash Equivalents, Beginning of Year 485,525 343,640 4,461,316
Cash and Cash Equivalents, End of Year (Note 4) ¥629,152 ¥485,525 $5,781,053

See notes to consolidated financial statements.

The Juroku Bank, Ltd. and Consolidated Subsidiaries      Year Ended March 31, 2020

1. BASIS OF PRESENTATION OF CONSOLIDATED 
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
The accompanying consolidated financial statements have been prepared 
in accordance with the provisions set forth in the Japanese Financial 
Instruments and Exchange Act and its related accounting regulations 
and the Enforcement Regulation for the Banking Law, and in accor-
dance with accounting principles generally accepted in Japan (“Japanese 
GAAP”), which are different in certain respects as to the application and 
disclosure requirements of International Financial Reporting Standards.
 In preparing these consolidated financial statements, certain reclas-
sifications and rearrangements have been made to the consolidated finan-
cial statements issued domestically in order to present them in a form 
that is more familiar to readers outside Japan.
 The consolidated financial statements are stated in Japanese yen, the 
currency of the country in which The Juroku Bank, Ltd. (the “Bank”) is 
incorporated and operates. The translations of Japanese yen amounts into 
U.S. dollar amounts are included solely for the convenience of readers 
outside Japan and have been made at the rate of ¥108.83 to $1, the ap-
proximate rate of exchange at March 31, 2020. Such translations should 
not be construed as representations that the Japanese yen amounts could 
be converted into U.S. dollars at that or any other rate.

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
a. Consolidation
The consolidated financial statements as of March 31, 2020, include the 
accounts of the Bank and its seven (six in 2019) significant subsidiaries, 
including Juroku Business Service Co., Ltd., Juroku Research Institute 
Co., Ltd., Juroku Card Co., Ltd., Juroku Lease Co., Ltd., Juroku Com-
puter Service Co., Ltd., Juroku Credit Guarantee Co., Ltd., and Juroku 
Tokai Tokyo Securities Co., Ltd. (“Juroku TT Securities”) (together, the 
“Group”).
 The Bank has underwritten a capital increase by Juroku TT Se-
curities, which is a joint venture between the Bank and Tokai Tokyo 
Financial Holdings, Inc., on June 3, 2019 and Juroku TT Securities has 
been included in the scope of consolidation from the year ended March 
31, 2020.
 Under the control concept, those companies in which the Bank, 
directly or indirectly, is able to exercise control over operations are fully 
consolidated.
 Investments in seven (six in 2019) unconsolidated subsidiaries are 
stated at cost. If the equity method of accounting had been applied to 
the investments in these companies, the effect on the accompanying 
consolidated financial statements would not be material.
 The excess of the cost of acquisition over the fair value of the net 
assets of an acquired subsidiary at the date of acquisition is being amor-
tized over a period of 20 years.
 All significant intercompany balances and transactions have been 
eliminated in consolidation. All material unrealized profits included in 
assets resulting from transactions within the Group have been elimi-
nated in consolidation. 
 The balance sheet date for all consolidated subsidiaries is the end of 
March for each year, which is consistent with the balance sheet date of 
the Group.
b. Business Combination
Business combinations are accounted for using the purchase method. 
Acquisition-related costs, such as advisory fees or professional fees, are 
accounted for as expenses in the periods in which the costs are incurred. 
If the initial accounting for a business combination is incomplete by the 
end of the reporting period in which the business combination occurs, 
an acquirer shall report in its financial statements provisional amounts 
for the items for which the accounting is incomplete. During the mea-
surement period, which shall not exceed one year from the acquisition, 
the acquirer shall retrospectively adjust the provisional amounts recog-
nized at the acquisition date to reflect new information obtained about 
facts and circumstances that existed as of the acquisition date and that 
would have affected the measurement of the amounts recognized as of 
that date. Such adjustments shall be recognized as if the accounting for 
the business combination had been completed at the acquisition date. 
A parent’s ownership interest in a subsidiary might change if the parent 
purchases or sells ownership interests in its subsidiary. The carrying 
amount of noncontrolling interests is adjusted to reflect the change in 
the parent’s ownership interest in its subsidiary while the parent retains 
its controlling interest in its subsidiary. Any difference between the fair 

value of the consideration received or paid and the amount by which the 
noncontrolling interests are adjusted is accounted for as capital surplus 
as long as the parent retains control over its subsidiary.
c. Cash and cash equivalents
For the purpose of the consolidated statement of cash flows, cash and cash 
equivalents represent cash and amounts due from the Bank of Japan.
d. Trading securities
Trading securities are stated at fair value and the related unrealized gains 
and losses are included in earnings. The cost of trading securities sold is 
determined based on the moving-average method.
e. Securities
Securities other than trading securities are classified and accounted for, 
depending on management’s intent, as follows: 1) held-to-maturity debt 
securities, which are expected to be held to maturity with the positive 
intent and ability to hold to maturity, are reported at amortized cost 
and 2) available-for-sale securities, which are not classified as held-to-
maturity, are reported at fair value with unrealized gains and losses, net 
of applicable taxes, and are reported in a separate component of equity. 
Non-marketable available-for-sale securities are stated at cost deter-
mined by the moving-average method.
 For other-than-temporary declines in fair value, securities are re-
duced to net realizable value by a charge to income.
 Securities included in money held in trust for trading purposes are 
stated at fair value, and the related unrealized gains and losses are in-
cluded in earnings. Securities included in money held in trust for other 
purposes are accounted for by the same method as the above 2) available-
for-sale securities.
f. Premises and equipment
Premises and equipment are stated at cost less accumulated deprecia-
tion. Depreciation of premises and equipment of the Bank, except for 
leased assets, is computed using the declining-balance method over the 
estimated useful lives of the assets. 
 The range of useful lives is principally from 15 to 50 years for 
buildings and from 4 to 20 years for other premises and equipment.
 Depreciation of lease assets from finance lease transactions that do 
not deem to transfer ownership of the leased property to the lessee is 
computed using the straight-line method over the leasing period. Re-
sidual values of lease assets are the guaranteed values determined in the 
lease contracts or zero for assets without such guaranteed value.
 Under certain conditions, such as exchanges of premises and equip-
ment for similar kinds and sales and purchases resulting from expro-
priation, Japanese tax laws permit companies to defer the profit arising 
from such transactions by reducing the cost of the assets acquired or by 
providing a special reserve in the equity section. The deferred gain on 
premises and equipment resulting from the reduction of the cost of the 
assets acquired, which is taxable for tax purposes in the future, was ¥989 
million ($9,088 thousand) and ¥989 million as of March 31, 2020 and 
2019, respectively.
g. Long-lived assets
The Group reviews its long-lived assets for impairment whenever events 
or changes in circumstances indicate the carrying amount of an asset or 
asset group may not be recoverable. An impairment loss is recognized 
if the carrying amount of an asset or asset group exceeds the sum of the 
undiscounted future cash flows expected to result from the continued 
use and eventual disposition of the asset or asset group. The impairment 
loss would be measured as the amount by which the carrying amount 
of the asset exceeds its recoverable amount, which is the higher of the 
discounted cash flows from the continued use and eventual disposition 
of the asset or the net selling price at disposition.
h. Land revaluation
Under the “Law of Land Revaluation,” the Bank elected a one-time 
revaluation of its own-use land to a value based on real estate appraisal 
information as of March 31, 1998.
 The resulting land revaluation surplus represents unrealized ap-
preciation of land and is stated, net of income taxes, as a component of 
equity. There was no effect on the consolidated statement of income. 
Continuous readjustment is not permitted unless the land value sub-
sequently declines significantly such that the amount of the decline in 
value should be removed from the land revaluation surplus account and 
related deferred tax liabilities.
 The carrying amount of the land after the above one-time revalu-
ation exceeded the market value by ¥14,081 million ($129,385 thou-
sand) and ¥16,139 million as of March 31, 2020 and 2019, respectively.
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i. Intangible assets
Amortization of intangible assets is calculated using the straight-line 
method.
 Amortization cost of software for internal use is calculated using the 
straight-line method over the estimated useful life, principally, 5 years.
j. Reserve for possible loan losses
The Bank implemented a self-assessment system for its asset quality. 
The quality of all loans is assessed by the related lending division with 
a subsequent audit by the asset audit division in accordance with the 
Bank’s policies and rules for self-assessment of asset quality. 
 The Bank has established a credit rating system under which the 
customers are classified into five categories such as “normal,” “caution,” 
“possible bankruptcy,” “virtual bankruptcy” and “legal bankruptcy.” The 
credit rating system is used for the self-assessment of asset quality. 
 With respect to loans to customers who are likely to become bank-
rupt or to be closely monitored, which are classified within normal and 
caution loans, the reserve for possible loan losses is calculated based on 
the projected future losses for the following three years, whilst for other 
loans, for the following one year. The projected future losses are calculat-
ed based on the loss ratios, which are based on the average of actual past 
loss ratios for the past three years or one year, respectively. For loans such 
as possible bankruptcy, the reserve for possible loan losses is calculated 
based on an amount deemed necessary to cover possible losses on loans 
considering the customer’s solvency and other factors after the estimated 
fair value of the collateral real estate or guaranteed amount has been 
deducted. For loans such as virtual bankruptcy or legal bankruptcy, the 
reserve for possible loan losses is calculated based upon the loan amount 
after the estimated fair value of the collateral real estate or guaranteed 
amount has been deducted. 
 For loans to possible bankruptcy customers and customers who are 
likely to become bankrupt or to be closely monitored, if the exposure 
to a customer, after deducting the estimated value of the collateral or 
guaranteed amount, exceeds a certain amount, the discounted cash flow 
method is applied to calculate the loss provision. In these circumstances, 
the reserve is determined as the difference between the book value of the 
loan and the present value of future cash flows, which are discounted us-
ing the contractual interest rate in the case that future cash flows of the 
principal and interest can be reasonably estimated. 
 Reserve for possible loan losses of consolidated subsidiaries is 
provided based on historical loan loss experience and estimated collect-
ability of specific claims.
(Additional Information)
Although the effect of the spread of the new coronavirus disease on the 
economy is expected to converge moderately over the next fiscal year, 
and the extent of the effect is expected to vary by debtor, the debtor clas-
sification and the reserve for possible loan losses are recorded based on 
the assumption that the credit risk for loans originating from the Bank 
and its consolidated subsidiaries will be affected within the range of the 
above assumptions.
 There are uncertainties in the above assumptions, and the amount 
of loss may increase or decrease depending on the situation of the new 
coronavirus disease and its effect on the economy.
k. Liability for retirement benefits
The Bank has a contributory funded defined benefit pension plan, lump-
sum payment severance plan for employees and defined contribution 
pension plan, and certain subsidiaries have lump-sum payment sever-
ance plans for employees and apply the simplified method to state the 
liability based on the amount that should be paid if employees retired at 
the consolidated balance sheet date. 
 The liability for retirement benefits is based on projected benefit 
obligations and plan assets at the end of the fiscal year. The projected 
benefit obligations are attributed to periods on a benefit formula basis. 
Actuarial gains and losses and past service costs that are yet to be recog-
nized in profit or loss are recognized within equity (accumulated other 
comprehensive income), after adjusting for tax effects and are recog-
nized in profit or loss over 10 years no longer than the expected average 
remaining service period of the employees, starting in the fiscal year 
following the occurrence of such differences.
 Retirement benefits to directors and Audit & Supervisory Board 
members of consolidated subsidiaries are provided at the amount that 
would be required if all directors and Audit & Supervisory Board mem-
bers retired at the consolidated balance sheet date based on internal poli-
cies. 

l. Stock option
The cost of employee stock options is measured based at fair value on the 
date of grant and is recognized as compensation expense over the vesting 
period as consideration for receiving goods or services. In the consoli-
dated balance sheet, the stock options are presented as stock acquisition 
rights as a separate component of equity until exercised. 
m. Leases
In regard to finance leases, sales and cost of sales are recognized when 
lease payments are received.
 All other leases are accounted for as operating leases.
n. Bonuses to directors and Audit & Supervisory Board members
Bonuses to directors and Audit & Supervisory Board members of con-
solidated subsidiaries are accrued at the end of the year to which such 
bonuses are attributable.
o. Provision for losses from reimbursement of inactive accounts
The provision for losses from reimbursement of inactive accounts, which 
are derecognized as liabilities under certain conditions, is provided for 
possible losses on future claims of withdrawal based on historical reim-
bursement experience.
p. Provision for contingent losses
The Bank provides a provision for contingent losses not covered by other 
provisions in an amount deemed necessary based on estimated losses in 
the future.
q. Provision required under the Special Act
The provision required under the Special Act is a financial instruments 
transaction liability reserve for consolidated subsidiaries engaged in 
financial instruments business, and is provided to prepare for losses aris-
ing from operational incidents incurred in relation to trading and other 
securities transactions. The amount of the provision is calculated pursu-
ant to the provisions of Article 46-5 of the Financial Instruments and 
Exchange Act and Article 175 of the Cabinet Office Order on Financial 
Instruments Business. 
r. Income taxes
The provision for current income taxes is computed based on the pretax 
income included in the consolidated statement of income. The asset and 
liability approach is used to recognize deferred tax assets and liabili-
ties for the expected future tax consequences of temporary differences 
between the carrying amounts and the tax bases of assets and liabilities. 
Deferred taxes are measured by applying currently enacted income tax 
rates to the temporary differences.
s. Foreign currency transactions
Foreign currency assets and liabilities of the Group are translated into 
yen equivalents at the exchange rates prevailing at the fiscal year end. 
t. Derivatives and hedging activities
The Bank uses a variety of derivative financial instruments. 
 Derivative financial instruments and foreign currency transactions 
are classified and accounted for as follows: (1) all derivatives are recog-
nized as either assets or liabilities and measured at fair value, and gains 
or losses on the derivative transactions are recognized in the consolidated 
statement of income, and (2) for derivatives used for hedging purposes, 
if the derivatives qualify for hedge accounting because of high correla-
tion and effectiveness between the hedging instruments and the hedged 
items, gains or losses on the derivatives are deferred until maturity of 
the hedged transactions.
 The Bank applies the deferral method of hedge accounting to hedg-
es of interest rate risk associated with financial assets and liabilities in 
accordance with “Accounting and Auditing Treatments on the Applica-
tion of Accounting Standards for Financial Instruments in the Banking 
Industry” (JICPA Industry Audit Committee Report No. 24) issued by 
the Japanese Institute of Certified Public Accountants. Under JICPA In-
dustry Audit Committee Report No. 24, hedges to offset changes in fair 
value of fixed rate instruments (such as securities) (“fair value hedges”) 
are applied by grouping hedging instruments and hedged items by their 
maturities. The assessment of hedge effectiveness is generally based on 
the consideration of interest rate indices affecting the respective fair 
values of the group of hedging instruments and hedged items.
u. Consumption taxes
The Bank and its domestic consolidated subsidiaries account for con-
sumption tax and local consumption tax by the tax-exclusion method.

v. Per share information
Basic net income per share is computed by dividing net income at-
tributable to common shareholders by the weighted-average number 
of common shares outstanding for the period, retroactively adjusted for 
stock splits.
 Diluted net income per share reflects the potential dilution that 
could occur if securities were exercised or converted into common stock. 
Diluted net income per share of common stock assumes full conver-
sion of the outstanding convertible notes and bonds at the beginning of 
the year (or at the time of issuance) with an applicable adjustment for 
related interest expense, net of tax, and full exercise of outstanding war-
rants. 
 Cash dividends per share presented in the accompanying consolidat-
ed statement of income are dividends applicable to the respective years 
including dividends to be paid after the end of the year, not retroactively 
adjusted for a reverse stock split. 
w. New Accounting Pronouncements
“Accounting Standard for Revenue Recognition” (Accounting Stan-
dards Board of Japan (ASBJ) Statement No. 29, March 31, 2020)
“Implementation Guidance on Accounting Standard for Revenue 
Recognition” (ASBJ Guidance No. 30, March 31, 2020)
(1) Overview
The above standard and guidance provide comprehensive principles for 
revenue recognition. Under the standard and guidance, revenue will be 
recognized based on the following five steps.
 Step 1: Identify the contract(s) with a customer
 Step 2: Identify the performance obligations in the contract
 Step 3: Determine the transaction price
 Step 4:  Allocate the transaction price to the performance obligations 

under the contract
 Step 5:  Recognize revenue when (or as) the performance obligation 

is satisfied
(2) Application date
The Bank will apply the standard and guidance from the beginning of 
the year ending March 31, 2022.
(3) Impact of adoption
The Bank is currently assessing the impact of adopting the above stan-
dard and guidance on the consolidated financial statements.

“Accounting Standard for Fair Value Measurement” (ASBJ State-
ment No. 30, July 4, 2019)
“Implementation Guidance on Accounting Standard for Fair Value 
Measurement” (ASBJ Guidance No. 31, July 4, 2019)
“Accounting Standard for Financial Instruments” (ASBJ Statement 
No. 10, July 4, 2019)
“Implementation Guidance on Disclosures about Fair Value of Fi-
nancial Instruments” (ASBJ Guidance No. 19, March 31, 2020)
(1) Overview
In order to increase the international comparability of accounting 
standards, “Accounting Standard for Fair Value Measurement” and 
“Implementation Guidance on Accounting Standard for Fair Value 
Measurement” (hereinafter referred to as the “Fair Value Measurement 
Standards, etc.”) were developed, and guidance and other rules were 
established with regard to the method for fair value measurement. Fair 
Value Measurement Standards, etc. will be applicable for the fair values 
of the following items.
•  Financial instruments defined in “Accounting Standard for Financial 

Instruments”
 In addition, “Implementation Guidance on Disclosures about Fair 
Value of Financial Instruments” was revised to include notes regarding 
the breakdown by level of fair values of financial instruments.
(2) Application date
The Bank will apply the standards and guidance from the beginning of 
the year ending March 31, 2022.
(3) Impact of adoption
The Bank is currently assessing the impact of adopting the Fair Value 
Measurement Standards, etc. on the consolidated financial statements.

“Accounting Standard for Disclosure of Accounting Estimates” (ASBJ 
Statement No. 31, March 31, 2020)
(1) Overview
The purpose of this accounting standard is to disclose information that 
will facilitate the understanding of the users of the financial state-
ments, regarding items of accounting estimates recorded in the financial 
statements for the current fiscal year that have the risk of significantly 
impacting the financial statements for the following fiscal year.
(2) Application date
The Bank will apply the above standard from the end of the year ending 
March 31, 2021.
x. Changes in Presentation 
(Consolidated Statement of Income)
For dividend income from group credit life insurance and others, which 
was previously included in “Other Income,” the Bank has reviewed its 
accounting method in consideration of the revisions to the contracts 
related to insurance premiums and dividend income for certain group 
credit life insurance policies as well as the prospect of an increase in such 
insurance policies. Accordingly, the Bank has determined that it will be 
more appropriate to record the net amount of insurance premiums after 
deducting dividend income, from the viewpoint of disclosing the actual 
amount of insurance premiums to be borne. As a result, from the year 
ended March 31, 2020, the above dividend income has been included in 
“Fees and Commissions” and “General and Administrative Expenses.”
 In order to reflect this change in presentation, the consolidated 
financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2019 have been reclas-
sified. As a result, ¥5,031 million in “Other Income,” ¥6,780 million in 
“Fees and Commissions” and ¥50,099 million in “General and Ad-
ministrative Expenses” in the consolidated statement of income for the 
year ended March 31, 2019 have been reclassified as “Other Income” of 
¥4,325 million, “Fees and Commissions” of ¥6,135 million and “General 
and Administrative Expenses” of ¥50,038 million.

3. BUSINESS COMBINATIONS
For the year ended March 31, 2020
Merger by Acquisition
(1) Summary of the transaction
1) Name of aquiree and description of its business

Aquiree Description of its business
Juroku Tokai Tokyo Securities Co., Ltd. Type I financial instruments trading

2) Main purpose of the business combination
By making full use of the expertise and functions accumulated by the 
Tokai Tokyo Financial Holdings Group within the broad network in the 
Bank’s sales areas, the Bank will provide diverse, quality financial ser-
vices tailored to the needs of its customers and contribute to the growth 
and development of customers and the local economy as a securities 
company rooted in the region.
3) Date of business combination
June 3, 2019
4) Legal form of business combination
Acquisition of shares
5) Name of the entity after business combination
No change
6) Percentage of voting rights acquired
60%
7) Main reasons for determining the acquirer
The Bank has been determined to be the acquirer since the company is a 
company invested by the Bank and it accounts for the largest percentage 
of voting rights of the company after the acquisition.
(2) Period of operating results of the acquiree included in the consoli-
dated financial statements
Since June 30, 2019 is the deemed acquisition date, the operating 
results for the period from July 1, 2019 to March 31, 2020 is included.
(3) Cost incurred by the acquiree and description of the cost

Millions of Yen Thousands of  
U.S. dollars

Consideration for 
   acquisition Cash ¥5,465 $50,216
Acquisition cost ¥5,465 $50,216
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(4) Details and amount of major acquisition-related costs
Fees and commissions for financial and legal due diligence: ¥15 million 
($138 thousand)
(5) Amount of goodwill recognized, reason for recognition, and method 
and period of amortization
1) Amount of goodwill recognized
¥2,076 million ($19,076 thousand)
The amount of goodwill has been finalized following the completion of 
allocation of the acquisition costs.
2) Reason for recognition
Goodwill was recognized due to the difference between the Bank’s 
equity interests in the acquiree and the acquisition cost. 
3) Method and period of amortization
Amortized using the straight-line method over a period of ten years
(6) Amount allocated to intangible assets other than goodwill and 
amortization period
1) Amount allocated to intangible assets
Customer-related assets: ¥295 million ($2,711 thousand)
2) Amortization period
Ten years
(7) Amount of assets acquired and liabilities assumed at the date of 
business combination and its major breakdown

Millions of Yen Thousands of 
U.S. Dollars

Assets ¥6,887 $63,282
Cash 4,016 36,902

Liabilities 1,237 11,366
Other liabilities 976 8,968

While the Bank conducted a provisional accounting for the allocation of 
acquisition costs in the first quarter of the year ended March 31, 2020 
based on reasonable information available at the time of the preparation 
of the quarterly consolidated financial statements, the allocation of 
acquisition costs has been finalized in the fourth quarter of the year 
ended March 31, 2020. As a result, the amount of goodwill decreased by 
¥124 million ($1,139 thousand) from the provisionally calculated 
amount.
 The changes in the amounts of assets acquired and liabilities 
assumed from the provisionally calculated amounts were an increase of 
¥295 million ($2,711 thousand) in customer-related assets and an 
increase of ¥88 million ($809 thousand) in deferred tax liabilities.
(8) Approximate amount of impact on the consolidated statement of 
income for the year ended March 31, 2020 and the method of calcula-
tion of such amount assuming that the business combination was 
completed at the beginning of the year ended March 31, 2020
 The impact is minimal.

Acquisition of Additional Shares of a Subsidiary
On September 27, 2019, the Bank has acquired part of the shares of 
Juroku Computer Service Co., Ltd., which is a consolidated subsidiary, 
owned by noncontrolling interests, in exchange for cash in the amount 
of ¥359 million ($3,299 thousand). This transaction was made to 
strengthen the governance of the Bank. The transaction was accounted 
for as a transaction with noncontrolling interests under common control 
in accordance with ASBJ Statement No. 21, “Accounting Standard for 
Business Combinations” and ASBJ Guidance No. 10, “Guidance on 
Accounting Standard for Business Combinations and Business Divesti-
tures.” As a result, the Bank’s voting rights ratio in Juroku Computer 
Service Co., Ltd. has increased to 43.03% (26.79% prior to acquisition). 
The Bank has recognized an increase of capital surplus in the amount of 
¥231 million ($2,123 thousand) for the year ended March 31, 2020.

Acquisition of Treasury Stock by a Consolidated Subsidiary
On December 3, 2019, Juroku Credit Guarantee Co., Ltd., which is a 
consolidated subsidiary, acquired part of treasury stock owned by 
noncontrolling interests and other subsidiaries, in exchange for cash in 
the amount of ¥558 million ($5,127 thousand). This amount is related 
to transactions with noncontrolling interests and the entire amount of 
the transactions among consolidated subsidiaries is eliminated. This 
transaction was made to execute capital measures flexibly in response to 
changes in the business environment and to strengthen the governance 
and profitability of the Bank. The transaction was accounted for as a 
transaction with noncontrolling interests under common control in 
accordance with ASBJ Statement No. 21, “Accounting Standard for 
Business Combinations” and ASBJ Guidance No. 10, “Guidance on 
Accounting Standard for Business Combinations and Business Divesti-
tures.” The Bank has recognized an increase of capital surplus in the 
amount of ¥1,012 million ($9,299 thousand) for the year ended March 
31, 2020.

4. CASH AND DUE FROM BANKS
Cash and due from banks as of March 31, 2020 and 2019, consisted of 
the following:

Millions of Yen Thousands of 
U.S. Dollars

2020 2019 2020

Cash ¥ 67,439 ¥ 62,514 $ 619,673
Due from banks 565,344 424,652 5,194,744

Total ¥632,783 ¥487,166 $5,814,417

A reconciliation between the cash and due from banks in the consolidat-
ed balance sheet and the cash and cash equivalents in the consolidated 
statement of cash flows for the years ended March 31, 2020 and 2019, 
was as follows:

Millions of Yen Thousands of 
U.S. Dollars

2020 2019 2020

Cash and due from banks ¥632,783 ¥487,166 $5,814,417
Due from banks 
  other than the Bank of Japan (3,631) (1,641) (33,364)

Cash and cash equivalents ¥629,152 ¥485,525 $5,781,053

Major breakdown of assets and liabilities of the company, which became 
a consolidated subsidiary as a result of acquisition of shares
 The major breakdown of assets and liabilities at the start of consoli-
dation of Juroku TT Securities due to acquisition of shares, as well as 
the relationship between the acquisition value of Juroku TT Securities’ 
shares and the expenditure for the acquisition of Juroku TT Securities’ 
shares, were as follows.

Millions of Yen Thousands of 
U.S. Dollars

Assets ¥6,887 $63,282
Cash 4,016 36,902

Liabilities (1,237) (11,366)
Other liabilities (976) (8,968)

Noncontrolling interests (2,261) (20,776)
Goodwill 2,076 19,076
Acquisition value of Juroku TT 
  Securities’ shares 5,465 50,216

Expenditure for acquisition of 
  Juroku TT Securities’ shares 5,465 50,216

5. TRADING SECURITIES AND SECURITIES
Trading securities as of March 31, 2020 and 2019, consisted of the fol-
lowing:

Millions of Yen Thousands of 
U.S. Dollars

2020 2019 2020

Japanese government bonds ¥372 ¥308 $3,418
Japanese local government 
  bonds 36 70 331

¥408 ¥378 $3,749

The Bank records net valuation gains and losses as other operating 
income and expenses, respectively. For the years ended March 31, 2020 
and 2019, the Bank recorded net valuation losses of ¥6 million ($55 
thousand) and ¥6 million, respectively.
 Securities as of March 31, 2020 and 2019, consisted of the following: 

Millions of Yen Thousands of 
U.S. Dollars

2020 2019 2020

Equity securities ¥ 118,933 ¥ 132,812 $ 1,092,833
Japanese government bonds 181,970 350,146 1,672,057
Japanese local government 
  bonds 334,349 265,973 3,072,214

Japanese corporate bonds 219,332 188,928 2,015,363
Other securities 397,018 407,563 3,648,057

Total ¥1,251,602 ¥1,345,422 $11,500,524

Unsecured loaned securities which borrowers have the right to sell or 
pledge in the amount of ¥55,693 million ($511,743 thousand) and 
¥45,413 million as of March 31, 2020 and 2019, were included in 
Japanese government bonds, respectively.
 Information regarding available-for-sale and held-to-maturity 
securities as of March 31, 2020 and 2019, was as follows:

Millions of Yen

March 31, 2020 Cost Unrealized
Gains

Unrealized
Losses

Fair
Value

Securities classified as:
Available-for-sale:
Equity securities ¥ 56,499 ¥58,907 ¥2,974 ¥112,432
Debt securities 681,062 3,414 1,894 682,582
Other 377,161 7,419 7,784 376,796

Held-to-maturity:
Debt securities 53,069 337 148 53,258

Millions of Yen

March 31, 2019 Cost Unrealized
Gains

Unrealized
Losses

Fair
Value

Securities classified as:
Available-for-sale:
Equity securities ¥ 56,452 ¥72,559 ¥2,728 ¥126,283
Debt securities 756,839 6,506 667 762,678
Other 388,451 4,825 3,887 389,389

Held-to-maturity:
Debt securities 42,368 274 165 42,477

Thousands of U.S. Dollars

March 31, 2020 Cost Unrealized
Gains

Unrealized
Losses

Fair
Value

Securities classified as:
Available-for-sale:
Equity securities $ 519,149 $541,275 $27,327 $1,033,097
Debt securities 6,258,035 31,370 17,403 6,272,002
Other 3,465,598 68,171 71,525 3,462,244

Held-to-maturity:
Debt securities 487,632 3,097 1,360 489,369

Proceeds from sales of available-for-sale securities for the years ended 
March 31, 2020 and 2019, consisted of the following: 

Millions of Yen
March 31, 2020 Proceeds Realized Gains Realized Losses
Equity securities ¥ 4,107 ¥1,607 ¥ 305
Debt securities:

Japanese government bonds 39,682 182 692
Japanese corporate bonds 1,907 7 —

Other 132,130 2,834 894
Total ¥177,826 ¥4,630 ¥1,891

Millions of Yen
March 31, 2019 Proceeds Realized Gains Realized Losses
Equity securities ¥ 9,072 ¥2,504 ¥ 643
Debt securities:

Japanese government bonds 15,307 96 89
Japanese local government 
  bonds 42,418 293 5

Other 271,963 3,143 2,882
Total ¥338,760 ¥6,036 ¥3,619

Thousands of U.S. Dollars
March 31, 2020 Proceeds Realized Gains Realized Losses
Equity securities $ 37,738 $14,766 $ 2,802
Debt securities:

Japanese government bonds 364,624 1,672 6,359
Japanese local government 
  bonds 17,523 64 —

Other 1,214,095 26,041 8,215
Total $1,633,980 $42,543 $17,376

In addition, held-to-maturity securities amounting to ¥170 million 
($1,562 thousand) and ¥79 million were reclassified as available-for-sale 
securities due to a decline in the issuer’s credit worthiness as of March 
31, 2020 and 2019. The effect of these reclassifications on the accompa-
nying consolidated financial statements was immaterial.
 Securities other than trading securities (excluding those securities 
whose fair value cannot be reliably determined) whose fair value signifi-
cantly declined below the acquisition cost and is considered not likely 
to be recovered are written down to their respective fair value, which is 
recorded as the carrying amount on the consolidated balance sheets.
 The fair value is deemed to have significantly declined if the year-
end fair value declined by 30% or more from the acquisition cost for 
securities issued by bankrupt borrowers, virtually bankrupt borrowers, 
potentially bankrupt borrowers, and borrowers who are likely to become 
bankrupt or to be closely monitored, and if the fair value declined by 
50% or more from the acquisition cost for securities issued by normal 
borrowers.
 The impairment loss on available-for-sale equity securities for the 
year ended March 31, 2020, was ¥1,204 million ($11,063 thousand), 
which consisted of ¥1,090 million ($10,016 thousand) of equity securi-
ties and ¥114 million ($1,047 thousand) of debt securities. 
 The impairment loss on available-for-sale equity securities for the 
year ended March 31, 2019, was ¥9 million, which consisted of ¥9 mil-
lion of debt securities. 
 Unrealized gain on available-for-sale securities as of March 31, 2020 
and 2019, consisted of the following:

Millions of Yen Thousands of 
U.S. Dollars

2020 2019 2020

Unrealized gain before  
  deferred tax on:
Available-for-sale securities ¥57,038 ¥76,500 $524,102
Money held in trust-other 11 11 101

Deferred tax liabilities (16,944) (22,543) (155,692)
Unrealized gain on available- 
  for-sale securities before  
  interest adjustments

40,105 53,968 368,511

Noncontrolling interests (187) (269) (1,719)
Unrealized gain on available- 
  for-sale securities ¥39,918 ¥53,699 $366,792

28 29



Unrealized gain before deferred tax on available-for-sale securities 
includes ¥117 million ($1,075 thousand) and ¥43 million of revalua-
tion gain on available-for-sale securities as of March 31, 2020 and 2019, 
respectively, which are held by an investment limited partnership and 
similar groups.
 Investments in and advances to subsidiaries and associated com-
panies as of March 31, 2020 and 2019, were ¥646 million ($5,936 
thousand) and ¥642 million, respectively. 

6. MONEY HELD IN TRUST
Information regarding money held in trust for trading purposes as of 
March 31, 2020 and 2019, was as follows:

Carrying Amount

Millions of Yen Thousands of 
U.S. Dollars

2020 2019 2020

Money held in trust classified 
  as trading purpose ¥6,000 ¥6,000 $55,132

Money held in trust-other 2,512 1,012 23,082
Total ¥8,512 ¥7,012 $78,214

7. LOANS AND BILLS DISCOUNTED
Loans and bills discounted as of March 31, 2020 and 2019, consisted of 
the following:

Millions of Yen Thousands of  
U.S. Dollars

2020 2019 2020

Bills discounted ¥ 20,085 ¥ 29,354 $ 184,554
Loans on bills 123,376 129,537 1,133,658
Loans on deeds 3,809,349 3,744,550 35,002,747
Overdrafts 388,685 397,480 3,571,488
Others 4,079 3,145 37,480

Total ¥4,345,574 ¥4,304,066 $39,929,927

“Nonaccrual loans,” which include loans to borrowers in bankruptcy 
and past due loans, are defined as loans upon which the Bank has dis-
continued the accrual of interest income. Borrowers are generally placed 
on nonaccrual status when substantial doubt is deemed to exist as to the 
ultimate collectability of either the principal or interest and if the loans 
are past due for a certain period of time or for other reasons.
 “Loans to borrowers in bankruptcy” represent nonaccrual loans 
to debtors who are legally bankrupt, which is defined in Article 96, 
Paragraph 1, Subparagraphs 3 and 4 of Enforcement Ordinance for the 
Corporate Tax Law. Loans to borrowers in legal bankruptcy as of March 
31, 2020 and 2019, were ¥3,943 million ($36,231 thousand) and ¥3,921 
million, respectively.
 “Past due loans” are nonaccrual loans other than loans to borrowers 
in bankruptcy and loans of which interest payments are deferred in order 
to assist the financial recovery of a debtor in financial difficulty. Past due 
loans as of March 31, 2020 and 2019, were ¥58,876 million ($540,990 
thousand) and ¥60,351 million, respectively.
 “Accruing loans past due three months or more” are defined as loans 
on which principal or interest is past due more than three months. Loans 
classified as loans to borrowers in bankruptcy and past due loans are 
excluded from accruing loans past due three months or more. Accruing 
loans past due three months or more as of March 31, 2020 and 2019, 
were ¥99 million ($910 thousand) and ¥162 million, respectively.
 “Restructured loans” are defined as loans in which the Group is 
providing financial support to a borrower by a reduction of interest rates, 
deferral of interest payments, extension of maturity dates, or reduction 
of the face or maturity amount of the debt or accrued interest. Loans 
classified as loans to borrowers in bankruptcy, past due loans and accru-
ing loans past due three months or more are excluded from restructured 
loans. Restructured loans as of March 31, 2020 and 2019, were ¥1,958 
million ($17,991 thousand) and ¥2,224 million, respectively.
 The total amount of loans to borrowers in bankruptcy, past due 
loans, accruing loans past due three months or more and restructured 
loans as of March 31, 2020 and 2019, were ¥64,876 million ($596,122 
thousand) and ¥66,658 million, respectively. 

 Bills discounted are accounted for as financing transactions in ac-
cordance with “Treatment of Accounting and Auditing in Applying 
Accounting Standard for Financial Instruments in the Banking Indus-
try” (JICPA Industry Audit Committee Report No. 24) issued by the 
Japanese Institute of Certified Public Accountants. The Bank has rights 
to sell or pledge accepted commercial bills discounted and foreign bills 
of exchange bought without restrictions. The total fair value of com-
mercial bills discounted and foreign bills of exchange bought included in 
foreign exchanges as of March 31, 2020 and 2019, were ¥20,918 million 
($192,208 thousand) and ¥30,419 million, respectively.

8. FOREIGN EXCHANGES
Foreign exchanges as of March 31, 2020 and 2019, consisted of the fol-
lowing:

Millions of Yen Thousands of 
U.S. Dollars

2020 2019 2020
Assets:
Due from foreign 
 correspondent account ¥6,779 ¥4,646 $62,290

Foreign bills of exchange bought 834 1,065 7,663
Foreign bills of exchange receivable 366 745 3,363

Total ¥7,979 ¥6,456 $73,316
Liabilities:

Due to foreign correspondent account ¥ 805 ¥ 752 $ 7,397
Foreign bills of exchange payable 177 214 1,626

Total ¥ 982 ¥ 966 $ 9,023

9. OTHER ASSETS
Other assets as of March 31, 2020 and 2019, consisted of the following:

Millions of Yen Thousands of 
U.S. Dollars

2020 2019 2020

Accrued income ¥ 4,446 ¥ 4,587 $ 40,853
Accounts receivable 10,558 10,486 97,014
Installment receivables 15,353 15,127 141,073
Derivative assets 6,624 5,746 60,866
Other 62,268 59,421 572,158

Total ¥99,249 ¥95,367 $911,964

10. PREMISES AND EQUIPMENT
Premises and equipment as of March 31, 2020 and 2019, consisted of 
the following:

Millions of Yen Thousands of
U.S. Dollars

2020 2019 2020

Land ¥45,784 ¥45,919 $420,693
Building 11,730 12,522 107,783
Construction in progress 2 — 18
Other 4,817 4,947 44,262

Total ¥62,333 ¥63,388 $572,756

The accumulated depreciation of premises and equipment as of March 
31, 2020 and 2019, amounted to ¥61,936 million ($569,108 thousand) 
and ¥61,294 million, respectively.

11. CUSTOMERS’ LIABILITIES FOR ACCEPTANCES AND 
GUARANTEES
All contingent liabilities arising from acceptances and guarantees are 
reflected in acceptances and guarantees. As a contra account, the cus-
tomers’ liabilities for acceptances and guarantees are presented as assets, 
representing the Bank’s right of indemnity from applicants.
 The Enforcement Ordinance of the Banking Law was revised on 
April 17, 2007, and effective from the fiscal years beginning on and after 
April 1, 2006. The Bank offsets customer’s liabilities for acceptance and 
guarantees with acceptance and guarantees of ¥53,242 million ($489,222 
thousand) and ¥42,528 million arising from guarantees of private place-
ment securities as of March 31, 2020 and 2019, respectively.

12. ASSETS PLEDGED
Assets pledged as collateral and their relevant liabilities as of March 31, 
2020 and 2019, were as follows: 

Millions of Yen Thousands of
U.S. Dollars

2020 2019 2020
Assets pledged as collateral:

Securities ¥407,966 ¥402,821 $3,748,654
Other assets 73 56 671

Total ¥408,039 ¥402,877 $3,749,325
Relevant liabilities to above assets:

Deposits ¥ 97,893 ¥ 74,260 $  899,504
Payables under repurchase 
  agreements 140,754 186,071 1,293,338

Payables under securities 
  lending transactions 15,153 105,931 139,236

Borrowed money 186,470 41,543 1,713,406
Total ¥440,270 ¥407,805 $4,045,484

In addition, the following assets were pledged or deposited with respect 
to foreign exchange settlements and derivatives as of March 31, 2020 
and 2019:

Millions of Yen Thousands of 
U.S. Dollars

2020 2019 2020

Securities ¥— ¥23,797 $—

Additionally, initial margins of futures markets, cash collateral received 
for financial instruments liabilities, guarantee deposits and initial mar-
gins of Central Counterparty included in other assets were as follows:

Millions of Yen Thousands of 
U.S. Dollars

2020 2019 2020

Initial margins of future 
  markets ¥ 507 ¥ 547 $ 4,659

Cash collateral received for 
  financial instruments liabilities 242 280 2,224

Guarantee deposits 2,181 1,980 20,040

Initial margins of Central 
  Counterparty 53,350 48,050 490,214

Total ¥56,280 ¥50,857 $517,137

13. DEPOSITS
Deposits as of March 31, 2020 and 2019, consisted of the following:

Millions of Yen Thousands of 
U.S. Dollars

2020 2019 2020

Current deposits ¥ 363,391 ¥ 362,357 $ 3,339,070
Ordinary deposits 2,982,591 2,787,601 27,405,964
Deposits at notice 92,737 91,787 852,127
Savings deposits 35,040 31,682 321,970
Time deposits 2,052,819 2,159,990 18,862,621
Other deposits 84,081 58,810 772,590

Total ¥5,610,659 ¥5,492,227 $51,554,342

14. BORROWED MONEY AND LEASE OBLIGATION
Borrowed money and lease obligation as of March 31, 2020 and 2019, 
consisted of the following:

Millions of Yen Thousands of
U.S. Dollars

2020 2019 2020

Borrowings due serially to February  
  2025 with weighted average interest rates  
  of 0.16 % in 2020 and 0.62% in 2019

¥208,421 ¥62,828 $1,915,106

Lease obligation 0 — 0

Weighted average interest rates of lease obligation are not represented 
because the lease obligation is disclosed on the balance sheet without 
deducting the interest portion which is included in the amount of the 
lease obligation. 
 Annual maturities of borrowings as of March 31, 2020 and 2019, 
were as follows:

As of March 31, 2020, 
  for the years ending March 31 Millions of Yen Thousands of

U.S. Dollars
2021 ¥ 98,222 $  902,527
2022 5,208 47,855
2023 32,978 303,023
2024 71,513 657,107
2025 500 4,594
2026 and thereafter — —

Total ¥208,421 $1,915,106

As of March 31, 2019, 
  for the years ending March 31 Millions of Yen

2020 ¥51,764
2021 5,453
2022 3,783
2023 1,553
2024 275
2025 and thereafter —

Total ¥62,828

Annual maturities of lease obligation as of March 31, 2020 were as fol-
lows:

As of March 31, 2020, 
  for the years ending March 31 Millions of Yen Thousands of

U.S. Dollars
2021 ¥  0 $  0
2022 — —
2023 — —
2024 — —
2025 — —
2026 and thereafter — —

Total ¥  0 $  0

There was no lease obligation as of March 31, 2019.

15. OTHER LIABILITIES
Other liabilities as of March 31, 2020 and 2019, consisted of the following:

Millions of Yen Thousands of
U.S. Dollars

2020 2019 2020

Domestic exchange settlement
  account, credit (*) ¥ 139 ¥ — $ 1,277

Income taxes payable 3,557 2,728 32,684
Accrued expenses 1,900 2,769 17,458
Deferred income 16,543 15,462 152,007
Employees’ deposits 2,571 2,729 23,624
Derivative liabilities 6,253 5,773 57,457
Accounts payable 8,491 8,444 78,021
Other 13,670 12,055 125,609

Total ¥53,124 ¥49,960 $488,137

(*) The domestic exchange settlement account consisted of outstanding 
remittance bills from other banks and/or collection bills for which the 
Bank has received notices for payment from other banks, which have not 
been settled.30 31



16. RETIREMENT AND PENSION PLANS
The Bank has a contributory funded defined benefit pension plan, lump-
sum payment severance plan for employees and defined contribution 
pension plan, and certain subsidiaries have lump-sum payment severance 
plans for employees and apply the simplified method to state the liabil-
ity based on the amount that would be paid if employees retired at the 
consolidated balance sheet date. The Bank contributed certain assets to 
the employee retirement benefit trust for the Bank’s contributory funded 
defined benefit pension plan and the assets in this trust are qualified as 
plan assets. 

(1) The changes in defined benefit obligation for the years ended March 
31, 2020 and 2019, were as follows:

Millions of Yen Thousands of
U.S. Dollars

2020 2019 2020

Balance at beginning of year ¥46,583 ¥47,350 $428,035
Current service cost 1,974 1,962 18,138
Interest cost 158 161 1,452
Actuarial losses (gains) 114 (557) 1,047
Benefits paid (2,286) (2,333) (21,005)

Balance at end of year ¥46,543 ¥46,583 $427,667

(2) The changes in plan assets for the years ended March 31, 2020 and 
2019, were as follows:

Millions of Yen Thousands of
U.S. Dollars

2020 2019 2020

Balance at beginning of year ¥44,002 ¥44,171 $404,319
Expected return on plan 
  assets 1,320 1,097 12,129

Actuarial losses (1,914) (1,009) (17,587)
Contributions from the 
  employer 788 1,458 7,241

Benefits paid (1,674) (1,715) (15,382)
Balance at end of year ¥42,522 ¥44,002 $390,720

(3) Reconciliation between the liability recorded in the consolidated bal-
ance sheet and the balances of defined benefit obligation and plan assets 
as of March 31, 2020 and 2019, was as follows:

Millions of Yen Thousands of
U.S. Dollars

2020 2019 2020

Funded defined benefit 
  obligation ¥40,190 ¥40,112 $369,292

Plan assets (42,522) (44,002) (390,720)
(2,332) (3,890) (21,428)

Unfunded defined benefit 
  obligation 6,353 6,471 58,375

Net liability arising from 
  defined benefit obligation ¥ 4,021 ¥ 2,581 $ 36,947

Millions of Yen Thousands of
U.S. Dollars

2020 2019 2020

Liability for retirement benefits 
  for employees ¥6,353 ¥6,471 $58,375

Asset for retirement benefits for 
  employees (2,332) (3,890) (21,428)

Net liability arising from defined 
  benefit obligation ¥4,021 ¥2,581 $36,947

(4) The components of net periodic benefit costs for the years ended 
March 31, 2020 and 2019, were as follows: 

Millions of Yen Thousands of
U.S. Dollars

2020 2019 2020

Service cost ¥1,974 ¥1,962 $18,138
Interest cost 158 161 1,452
Expected return on plan assets (1,320) (1,097) (12,129)
Recognized actuarial (gains) 
  losses (207) 504 (1,902)

Net periodic benefit costs ¥  605 ¥1,530 $ 5,559

(5) Amounts recognized in other comprehensive income (before income 
tax effect) in respect of defined retirement benefit plans for the years 
ended March 31, 2020 and 2019, were as follows:

Millions of Yen Thousands of
U.S. Dollars

2020 2019 2020

Actuarial (losses) gains ¥(2,235) ¥53 $(20,537)
Total ¥(2,235) ¥53 $(20,537)

(6) Amounts recognized in accumulated other comprehensive income 
(before income tax effect) in respect of defined retirement benefit plans 
as of March 31, 2020 and 2019, were as follows:

Millions of Yen Thousands of
U.S. Dollars

2020 2019 2020

Unrecognized actuarial losses ¥2,850 ¥615 $26,188
Total ¥2,850 ¥615 $26,188

(7) Plan assets
(a) Components of plan assets
Plan assets consisted of the following:

2020 2019

Debt investments 26% 32%
Equity investments 34 38
General account for life insurance 22 21
Others 18 9

Total 100% 100%

(*1) The retirement benefit trust that contributed to the pension plan 
is included in the plan assets and constitutes 16% and 16% of the total 
plan assets as of March 31, 2020 and 2019.

(b) Method of determining the expected rate of return on plan assets
The expected rate of return on plan assets is determined considering 
the current and future asset portfolio and the long-term rates of return 
which are expected currently and in the future from the variety of plan 
assets in the asset portfolio.

(8) Assumptions used for the years ended March 31, 2020 and 2019, 
were set forth as follows:

2020 2019

Discount rate:
Lump-sum payment 0.084% 0.084%
Pension plan 0.382% 0.382%

Expected rate of return on plan assets 3.000% 3.000%

The amount to be paid to defined contribution pension plan was ¥367 
million ($3,372 thousand) and ¥367 million for the years ended March 
31, 2020 and 2019.

17. ASSET RETIREMENT OBLIGATIONS
Asset retirement obligations are recognized for obligations of restoring 
leased buildings, such as branch premises, to their original state, based 
on the real estate lease contracts and asbestos removal costs.
 Asset retirement obligations are calculated based on the estimated 
available periods of 4 to 47 years depending on the expected useful lives 
of buildings using discount rates from 0.000% to 2.461%. 
 The changes in asset retirement obligations, which are included in 
other liabilities, for the years ended March 31, 2020 and 2019, were as 
follows:

Millions of Yen Thousands of
U.S. Dollars

2020 2019 2020

Balance at beginning of year ¥216 ¥197 $1,985
Reconciliation associated 
  with passage of time 3 4 27

Other increase of asset 
  retirement obligations — 15 —

Balance at end of year ¥219 ¥216 $2,012

18. EQUITY
Japanese banks are subject to the Companies Act of Japan (the “Companies 
Act”). The significant provisions in the Companies Act that affect financial 
and accounting matters are summarized below:
(a)Dividends
Under the Companies Act, companies can pay dividends at any time 
during the fiscal year, in addition to the year-end dividend upon resolu-
tion at the shareholders’ meeting. Additionally, for companies that meet 
certain criteria, the Board of Directors may declare dividends (except for 
dividends-in-kind) at any time during the fiscal year if the company has 
prescribed so in its articles of incorporation. However, the Bank cannot 
do so because it does not meet the criteria. Semiannual interim dividends 
may also be paid once a year upon resolution by the Board of Directors if 
the articles of incorporation of the company so stipulate. The Companies 
Act provides certain limitations on the amounts available for dividends 
or the purchase of treasury stock. The limitation is defined as the amount 
available for distribution to the shareholders, but the amount of net assets 
after dividends must be maintained at no less than ¥3 million.
(b) Treasury stock and treasury stock acquisition rights
The Companies Act also provides for companies to purchase treasury stock 
and dispose of such treasury stock by resolution of the Board of Directors. 
The amount of treasury stock purchased cannot exceed the amount avail-
able for distribution to the shareholders which is determined by a specific 
formula. Under the Companies Act, stock acquisition rights are presented 
as a separate component of equity. The Companies Act also provides that 
companies can purchase both treasury stock acquisition rights and treasury 
stock. Such treasury stock acquisition rights are presented as a separate 
component of equity or deducted directly from stock acquisition rights.
 Japanese Banking Law also provides that an amount equal to at least 
20% of the aggregate amount of cash dividends and certain other cash 
payments, which are made as an appropriation of retained earnings ap-
plicable to each fiscal period, shall be set aside as a legal reserve until the 
total additional paid-in capital and legal reserve equals 100% of stated 
capital. The amount of total additional paid-in capital and legal reserve 
that exceeds 100% of stated capital can be transferred to retained earnings 
by resolution of the shareholders, which may be available for dividends. 
The Bank’s legal reserve amount, which is included in retained earnings, 
totals ¥20,155 million ($185,197 thousand) and ¥20,155 million as of 
March 31, 2020 and 2019, respectively.

19. STOCK OPTIONS
The stock options outstanding as of March 31, 2020, are as follows:

Stock
Option

Persons
Granted

Number of 
Options 
Granted

Date of
Grant

Exercise
Price

Exercise 
Period

2013 Stock 
Option 11 directors 12,620 shares 2013.7.23 ¥ 1

($0.01)
From July 24, 2013
to July 23, 2043

2014 Stock 
Option 11 directors 15,550 shares 2014.7.23 ¥ 1

($0.01)
From July 24, 2014
to July 23, 2044

2015 Stock 
Option 10 directors  9,600 shares 2015.7.23 ¥ 1

($0.01)
From July 24, 2015
to July 23, 2045

2016 Stock 
Option

7 directors
8 executive 

officers
16,350 shares 2016.7.22 ¥ 1

($0.01)
From July 23, 2016
to July 22, 2046

2017 Stock 
Option

7 directors
8 executive 

officers
12,350 shares 2017.7.21 ¥ 1

($0.01)
From July 22, 2017
to July 21, 2047

2018 Stock 
Option

7 directors
9 executive 

officers
14,230 shares 2018.7.23 ¥ 1

($0.01)
From July 24, 2018
to July 23, 2048

2019 Stock 
Option

7 directors
9 executive 

officers
18,410 shares 2019.7.23 ¥ 1

($0.01)
From July 24, 2019
to July 23, 2049

The stock option activity is as follows:

2013 
Stock

Option

2014 
Stock

Option

2015 
Stock

Option

2016 
Stock

Option

2017 
Stock

Option

2018 
Stock

Option

2019 
Stock

Option
Year Ended March 31, 2020
Non-vested

March 31, 2019—Outstanding — — — — — 3,557.5 —
Granted — — — — — — 18,410
Canceled — — — — — — 550
Vested — — — — — 3,557.5 13,495

March 31, 2020—Outstanding — — — — — — 4,365

Vested

March 31, 2019—Outstanding 4,260 9,020 5,580 10,960 11,250 10,672.5 —
Vested — — — — — 3,557.5 13,495
Exercised 740 1,260 900 3,460 2,640 2,920 400
Canceled — — — — — — —

March 31, 2020—Outstanding 3,520 7,760 4,680 7,500 8,610 11,310 13,095

Exercise price ¥  1 ¥  1 ¥  1 ¥  1 ¥  1 ¥  1 ¥  1
($0.01) ($0.01) ($0.01) ($0.01) ($0.01) ($0.01) ($0.01)

Average stock price at exercise ¥2,268 ¥2,268 ¥2,268 ¥2,265 ¥2,279 ¥2,280 ¥2,502
($20.84) ($20.84) ($20.84) ($20.81) ($20.94) ($20.95) ($22.99)

Fair value price at grant date ¥3,650 ¥3,200 ¥4,640 ¥2,390 ¥3,170 ¥2,587 ¥2,068
($33.54) ($29.40) ($42.64) ($21.96) ($29.13) ($23.77) ($19.00)

Note:  Effective October 1, 2017, the Bank implemented a 1-for-10 
reverse stock split of common stock, and the number of shares, 
average stock price at exercise and fair value price at grant date are 
presented on a post-reverse stock split basis.

The Assumptions Used to Measure the Fair Value of the 2019 Stock Option
Estimate method: Black-Scholes option pricing model
Volatility of stock price: 32.063%
Estimated remaining outstanding period: 4.2 years
Estimated dividend: ¥70 ($0.64) per share
Risk free interest rate: (0.229)%
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20. OTHER OPERATING INCOME
Other operating income for the years ended March 31, 2020 and 2019, 
consisted of the following:

Millions of Yen Thousands of 
U.S. Dollars

2020 2019 2020

Gains on sales of Japanese 
  government bonds and other ¥ 2,984 ¥ 2,636 $ 27,419

Income on lease transaction 
  and installment receivables 23,434 21,857 215,327

Other 2,144 1,685 19,700
Total ¥28,562 ¥26,178 $262,446

21. OTHER INCOME
Other income for the years ended March 31, 2020 and 2019, consisted 
of the following:

Millions of Yen Thousands of 
U.S. Dollars

2020 2019 2020

Gain on sales of stock and 
  other securities ¥1,647 ¥3,400 $15,134

Other 445 925 4,089
Total ¥2,092 ¥4,325 $19,223

22. GENERAL AND ADMINISTRATIVE EXPENSES
General and administrative expenses for the years ended March 31, 2020 
and 2019, consisted of the following: 

Millions of Yen Thousands of 
U.S. Dollars

2020 2019 2020

Salaries and wages ¥19,379 ¥20,185 $178,067
Other 29,031 29,853 266,755

Total ¥48,410 ¥50,038 $444,822

23. OTHER EXPENSE
Other expense for the years ended March 31, 2020 and 2019, consisted 
of the following:

Millions of Yen Thousands of 
U.S. Dollars

2020 2019 2020

Loss on sales of stock and other 
  securities ¥ 326 ¥ 956 $ 2,995

Write-down of stock and other 
  securities 1,090 — 10,016

Other 581 568 5,339
Total ¥1,997 ¥1,524 $18,350

24. INCOME TAXES
The Bank and its subsidiaries are subject to Japanese national and local 
income taxes, which in the aggregate, resulted in a normal effective 
statutory tax rate of approximately 29.92% for the years ended March 
31, 2020 and 2019.
 The tax effects of significant temporary differences and tax loss car-
ryforwards, which result in deferred tax assets and liabilities as of March 
31, 2020 and 2019, were as follows:

Millions of Yen Thousands of 
U.S. Dollars

2020 2019 2020
Deferred tax assets:
Reserve for possible loan losses ¥ 5,885 ¥ 5,879 $ 54,075
Liability for retirement benefits 
  for employees 3,159 2,546 29,027

Write-down of securities 1,918 1,964 17,624
Depreciation 1,328 1,277 12,203
Tax loss carry forward 43 — 395
Other 2,233 2,176 20,518
Less: Valuation allowance (3,701) (3,536) (34,007)

Total 10,865 10,306 99,835
Deferred tax liabilities:
Unrealized gain on 
  available-for-sale securities (16,944) (22,543) (155,693)

Gain on contribution of 
  available-for-sale securities to 
  employees’ retirement benefit trusts

(955) (1,018) (8,775)

Other (546) (546) (5,017)
Total (18,445) (24,107) (169,485)

Net deferred tax assets ¥ (7,580) ¥(13,801) $ (69,650)

A reconciliation between the normal effective statutory tax rate and 
the actual effective tax rate reflected in the accompanying consolidated 
statement of income for the years ended March 31, 2020 and 2019, was 
as follows:

2020 2019

Normal effective statutory tax rate 29.92% 29.92%
Expenses not deductible for income tax purposes 0.48 0.55
Income not taxable for income tax purposes (1.71) (1.39)
Per capita tax 0.37 0.42
Net change in valuation allowance 0.55 0.50
Other – net 1.82 0.43
Actual effective tax rate 31.43% 30.43%

25. LEASES
Finance leases
(Lessee)
A subsidiary leases certain premises. 
 There was no rental expense including lease payments under the 
finance leases for the years ended March 31, 2020 and 2019.

(Lessor)
A subsidiary leases certain equipment and other assets. 
 The net investments in leases as of March 31, 2020 and 2019, were 
as follows:

Millions of Yen Thousands of 
U.S. Dollars

2020 2019 2020

Gross lease receivables ¥57,530 ¥53,153 $528,623
Unguaranteed residual values 1,561 1,607 14,343
Deferred interest income (5,115) (4,202) (47,000)

Total ¥53,976 ¥50,558 $495,966

Maturities of lease receivables for finance leases that were deemed to 
transfer ownership of the leased assets to the lessee are as follows:

As of March 31, 2020, 
  for the years ending March 31 Millions of Yen Thousands of 

U.S. Dollars
2021 ¥1,572 $14,445
2022 1,291 11,862
2023 984 9,042
2024 783 7,195
2025 488 4,484
2026 and thereafter 494 4,539

Total ¥5,612 $51,567

As of March 31, 2019, 
  for the years ending March 31 Millions of Yen

2020 ¥1,268
2021 1,233
2022 988
2023 697
2024 533
2025 and thereafter 736

Total ¥5,455

Maturities of investment in leases for finance leases that were deemed 
not to transfer ownership of the leased assets to the lessee are as follows:

As of March 31, 2020, 
  for the years ending March 31 Millions of Yen Thousands of 

U.S. Dollars
2021 ¥14,726 $135,312
2022 12,685 116,558
2023 10,558 97,013
2024 7,965 73,188
2025 5,203 47,809
2026 and thereafter 6,393 58,743

Total ¥57,530 $528,623

As of March 31, 2019, 
  for the years ending March 31 Millions of Yen

2020 ¥13,790
2021 11,826
2022 9,669
2023 7,503
2024 4,992
2025 and thereafter 5,373

Total ¥53,153

Operating leases
(Lessee)
The minimum rental commitments under noncancelable operating 
leases as of March 31, 2020 and 2019, were as follows:

Millions of Yen Thousands of 
U.S. Dollars

2020 2019 2020

Due within one year ¥   282 ¥   295 $  2,591
Due after one year 2,175 2,457 19,985

Total ¥2,457 ¥2,752 $22,576

(Lessor)
Expected future rental revenues under operating leases as of March 31, 
2020 and 2019 were as follows:

Millions of Yen Thousands of 
U.S. Dollars

2020 2019 2020

Due within one year ¥   527 ¥   529 $  4,842
Due after one year 815 903 7,489

Total ¥1,342 ¥1,432 $12,331

26. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS AND RELATED  
DISCLOSURES
(1) Group policy for financial instruments 
The Group provides banking services and comprehensive financial ser-
vices including a leasing business. The Group meets the needs of local 
business through providing various products and services in the banking 
services, lending services, trading of securities, securities investments 
and other financial services such as a derivatives business. The Group 
has aligned its operations with local personnel and businesses and raises 
funds from deposits from customers, which are low cost and stable. The 
Group also raises funds by borrowing.
 As for loans and bills discounted in the money management system, 
the Group finances local companies based on their capital demands and 
individuals mainly for home mortgages. As its main resources are bank 
deposits from customers, the Group aims to ensure the soundness of the 
assets through appropriate credit decisions and credit rating by under-
standing the current credit status and managing the credit portfolio to 
prevent concentrations in specific customers or industries. In marketable 
securities, considering the nature that it is engaged in excess fund man-
agement relating to lending services and its responsibility as a bank to 
provide settlement services, the Group focuses on running a fund based 
on public bonds, which is superior in security and liquidity. To build up 
a portfolio that is less subject to rising interest rates, the Group invests 
in risk assets, such as securities whose values are expected to be less cor-
related with bonds.
 The Group executes derivative transactions to fund and invest 
capital to meet the various needs of its customers as well as to meet its 
own needs. In trading transactions, the Group avoids excessive risk by 
restricting the type of transactions and limiting the volume of transac-
tions. Also, the Group will not trade a particular investment if its fair 
value is volatile compared to that of the underlying assets (i.e. high 
leverage-effect transaction).
(2) Nature and extent of risks arising from financial instruments
The loans and bills discounted are to general business enterprises, indi-
viduals, and local public bodies, and there is a risk (credit risk) that the 
value of loaned money is reduced by financial deterioration of the bor-
rower and a risk (interest risk) of losses due to changes in interest rates.
 In securities, the Group holds domestic bonds, foreign securities, 
stocks, investment trusts, and investment partnerships and so forth for 
investment purposes. Also, the Group holds certain domestic bonds 
for held-to-maturity purposes. In trading securities, the Group holds 
domestic bonds for trading. These items have interest risk, risk of 
changes in price, credit risk, and market liquidity risk. Market liquidity 
risk represents the risk that market trades cannot be performed due to 
market turmoil and that the Group may suffer losses due to significantly 
unfavorable financing conditions.
 Deposits and borrowed money hold interest risk and cash flow risk 
(liquidity risk). Cash flow risk refers to the risk that securing necessary 
financing becomes difficult or significant unfavorable financing condi-
tions result in recording of loss due to a mismatch of periods between 
operations and financing and unexpected outflows of money. Derivative 
transactions related to interest are comprised of interest-rate swap agree-
ments, cap agreements, floor agreements, and interest futures.
 Derivative transactions related to currency are comprised of ex-
change contracts, non-deliverable forwards (NDF), currency swap agree-
ments, and currency option contracts. Derivative transactions related to 
securities are comprised of bond futures, options on bond futures, OTC 
bond options, stock index futures, options on stock index futures, and 
individual security options.
 The Group utilizes derivative transactions to meet customer needs 
and to control risk so that interest risk, risk of changes in prices, and 
foreign currency exchange risk are not excessive. In trading transactions, 
the Group utilizes derivative transactions to earn a profit and to accu-
mulate the know-how related to the transactions and understand market 
trends.
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 The derivative transactions the Group utilizes are exposed to inter-
est risk, currency exchange risk, the risk of change in prices, and credit 
risk. In utilizing derivative transactions, the Group performs effective 
covering of transactions to meet customers’ needs, and in trading trans-
actions, the Group preliminarily establishes a risk limit to avoid expos-
ing the Group to an excessive degree of market risk. Transactions such 
as listed futures are exposed to limited credit risk and OTC transactions 
such as interest swaps are assumed to have low risk since the counterpar-
ties are comprised of highly credible financial institutions and compa-
nies.
 Certain derivatives utilized to mitigate risks from securities are 
recorded on the basis of hedge accounting in accordance with “Practical 
Guideline for Accounting for Financial Instruments” (JICPA Account-
ing Practice Committee Report No. 14). Such derivatives are interest 
rate swaps that are utilized to control the risks from securities. The 
Bank reviews the effectiveness of hedging activities using the methods 
permitted under the accounting standards.
(3) Risk management for financial instruments
Integrated Risk
The Group defines integrated risk management policies and regulations, 
and strengthens integrated risk management to ensure the soundness of 
management.
 The Group monitors various risks holistically including measure-
ment by statistical methods and aims to control risks within the range 
of management vitality. Specifically, the Group allocates risk capital 
to credit risk, market risk, and operational risk based on Value at Risk 
(“VaR”) calculations according to assumptions about the market fluctua-
tion rate and its half year business plan. In each operational division, the 
Group aims to control risk and obtain returns within the range of risk 
capital. Integrated risk is managed by the Risk Management Division 
and is reported monthly to the Integrated Risk Management Council 
and semiannually to the Board of Directors meetings. Necessary actions 
such as risk control are taken promptly.
Credit Risk Management
The Group defines credit risk management policy and rules such as 
credit risk management regulation to understand, manage and take ac-
tions on credit risk appropriately.
 In screening requests for loans, the Group clearly separates the cred-
it department from the operating department and the Group performs 
strict examination by the type of business. Also, the Group analyzes if 
repayment resources are ensured and reasonably secured on individual 
loans based on the purpose of the loan, business plans and investment 
effects.
 For credit portfolio management, the Group aims to prevent con-
centrations in particular customers or industries and ensure profits to 
meet credit costs.
 In addition, in order to improve credit risk, the Group seeks to 
implement management and business restructuring for customers expe-
riencing difficult business conditions.
Regarding credit risk management, the Group defines a credit rat-
ing system where the Group evaluates the degree of credit risk by an 
integrated scale objectively and makes arrangements to reevaluate credit 
ratings close to fiscal year end or when there are any changes in credit 
status.
 As for the level of credit risk and degree of concentration of credit 
granting, the Risk Management Division manages credit risk, reports 
monthly to the Integrated Risk Management Council and quarterly to 
management and discusses necessary actions.
Market risk management (foreign exchange risk and interest rate risk)
The Group considers interest rate risk, currency risk and the risk of 
change in prices as the main market risks and institutes a market risk 
management policy to manage the risks properly to avoid a reduction in 
the value of assets and losing credit. The Group also institutes market 
risk management regulations according to the market risk manage-
ment policy to clarify the identification of market risk, the role of the 
department in charge, the method of evaluation and monitoring and the 
methods for controlling and reducing market risk. 
 Under integrated risk management, the Group allocates risk capital 
to each business (deposit, loan, investment securities and other securi-
ties) and establishes a cap on the investment amount and a maximum 
loss amount and matters to be discussed (level of loss to be re-examined). 
The Group handles market transactions within these risk limits expedi-
tiously and effectively. With regard to these risks, the Risk Management 

Division manages and reports monthly to the Integrated Risk Manage-
ment Council and semiannually to the Board of Directors meetings and 
discusses necessary actions.
 Regarding derivative transactions, the Group follows internal regu-
lations and policies. The market-risk-management department (middle 
office) and office-work department (back office) manage and monitor 
the balance, fair value, profit and loss and measurement of risk of the 
transactions and report to top-management regularly to ensure mutual 
supervision of risks. Especially in trading transactions, the market-risk-
management department (middle office) manages the positions, mea-
surement of risk and application for loss cut rule closely. 
 The Group holds financial instruments which are exposed to market 
risks (e.g. interest-rate risk, price-volatility risk and exchange risk) such 
as loans and bills discounted, securities, deposits, negotiable deposits, 
borrowed money and corporate bonds. To manage these market risks, 
the Group calculates VaR, which is used for quantitative analysis.
 The Group calculates VaR of private placement bonds, borrowed 
money and corporate bonds that are exposed to interest-rate risk by the 
variance-covariance method (six months holding period with confidence 
interval of 99%, observation period one year). The VaR of these financial 
instruments amounted to ¥36,025 million ($331,021 thousand) and 
¥15,066 million in aggregate as of March 31, 2020 and 2019, respec-
tively.
 The Group calculates VaR of investment securities that are exposed 
to price-volatility risk by the variance-covariance method (six months 
holding period with confidence interval of 99%, observation period one 
year). The VaR of these financial instruments amounted to ¥32,969 mil-
lion ($302,940 thousand) and ¥30,853 million in aggregate as of March 
31, 2020 and 2019, respectively.
 In addition, the Group calculates VaR of securities, excluding 
investment securities, which are exposed to interest-rate risk or the price 
volatility risk by the variance-covariance method (six months holding 
period with confidence interval of 99%, observation period one year). 
The VaR of these financial instruments amounted to ¥71,542 million 
($657,374 thousand) and ¥29,501 million in aggregate as of March 31, 
2020 and 2019, respectively.
 The Group compares VaR calculated by the formula with the actual 
fluctuation of realized gains and losses to verify that the calculated VaR 
reflects market risks with a high degree of accuracy.
 However, VaR might not reflect market risks in circumstances such 
as unforeseen wide fluctuations in market circumstances because VaR 
reflects a certain amount of market risks calculated statistically based on 
historical fluctuation.
Liquidity risk management
As to liquidity risk, the Group defines liquidity risk management poli-
cies and liquidity risk management regulations, and aims to manage 
stable cash flows. Also, to be prepared for unforeseeable circumstances, 
the Group defines a contingency plan for liquidity risks and addresses 
them in a timely manner.
(4) Fair values of financial instruments
Fair values of financial instruments are based on quoted prices in active 
markets. If quoted prices are not available, other rational valuation 
techniques are used instead. Please see Note 28 for the details of the fair 
value of derivatives. Fair values are calculated based on certain assump-
tions; therefore, fair values may vary according to the assumptions used. 

(a) Fair value of financial instruments
Millions of Yen

March 31, 2020 Carrying
Amount Fair Value Unrealized 

Gains/Losses
Cash and due from banks ¥ 632,783 ¥ 632,783 —
Trading securities 408 408 —
Money held in trust 8,512 8,512 —
Securities

Held-to-maturity securities 53,069 53,258 ¥ 189
Available-for-sale securities 1,171,810 1,171,810 —

Loans and bills discounted 4,345,574
Less: Reserve for possible 
  loan losses (22,484)

Loans and bills discounted – net 4,323,090 4,342,129 19,039
Total ¥ 6,189,672 ¥ 6,208,900 ¥ 19,228

Deposits ¥ 5,610,659 ¥ 5,610,686 ¥ 27
Negotiable certificates of deposit 38,050 38,050 —
Payables under repurchase 
  agreements 140,754 140,754 —

Payables under securities 
  lending transactions 15,153 15,153

Borrowed money 208,421 208,413 (8)
Total ¥ 6,013,037 ¥ 6,013,056 ¥ 19

Derivatives to which hedge 
  accounting is not applied ¥ 620 ¥ 620 —

Derivatives to which hedge 
  accounting is applied ¥ (249) ¥ (249) —

 
Millions of Yen

March 31, 2019 Carrying
Amount Fair Value Unrealized 

Gains/Losses
Cash and due from banks ¥ 487,166 ¥ 487,166 —
Trading securities 378 378 —
Money held in trust 7,012 7,012 —
Securities

Held-to-maturity securities 42,368 42,477 ¥ 109
Available-for-sale securities 1,278,350 1,278,350 —

Loans and bills discounted 4,304,066
Less: Reserve for possible 
  loan losses (23,283)

Loans and bills discounted – net 4,280,783 4,295,634 14,851
Total ¥ 6,096,057 ¥ 6,111,017 ¥ 14,960

Deposits ¥ 5,492,227 ¥ 5,492,447 ¥ 220
Negotiable certificates of deposit 55,600 55,600 —
Payables under repurchase 
  agreements 186,071 186,071 —

Payables under securities 
  lending transactions 105,931 105,931 —

Borrowed money 62,828 62,867 39
Total ¥ 5,902,657 ¥ 5,902,916 ¥ 259

Derivatives to which hedge 
  accounting is not applied ¥ (27) ¥ (27) —

Derivatives to which hedge 
  accounting is applied ¥ — ¥ — —

Thousands of U.S. Dollars

March 31, 2020 Carrying
Amount Fair Value Unrealized 

Gains/Losses
Cash and due from banks $ 5,814,417 $ 5,814,417 —
Trading securities 3,749 3,749 —
Money held in trust 78,214 78,214 —
Securities

Held-to-maturity securities 487,632 489,369 $ 1,737
Available-for-sale securities 10,767,343 10,767,343 —

Loans and bills discounted 39,929,927
Less: Reserve for possible 
  loan losses (206,597)

Loans and bills discounted – net 39,723,330 39,898,273 174,943
Total $ 56,874,685 $ 57,051,365 $ 176,680

Deposits $ 51,554,342 $ 51,554,590 $ 248
Negotiable certificates of deposit 349,628 349,628 —
Payables under repurchase 
  agreements 1,293,338 1,293,338 —

Payables under securities 
  lending transactions 139,236 139,236 —

Borrowed money 1,915,106 1,915,032 (74)
Total $ 55,251,650 $ 55,251,824 $ 174

Derivatives to which hedge 
  accounting is not applied $ 5,697 $ 5,697 —

Derivatives to which hedge 
  accounting is applied $ (2,288) $ (2,288) —

Assets
Cash and due from banks
The carrying amount of cash and due from banks with no maturities 
represents the fair value because the fair value approximates such carry-
ing amount.

Trading securities
For securities such as bonds that are held for trading, the fair value is 
determined based on the prices quoted by the exchange or the financial 
institutions from which these securities are purchased.

Money held in trust
For securities and bonds independently managed in monetary trust, the 
fair value of equity securities is determined based on the prices quoted 
by the exchange and the fair value of bonds is determined based on the 
prices quoted by the exchange or the financial institutions from which 
they are purchased. 
 Also, trusts for cash segregated as deposits for customers of con-
solidated subsidiaries engaged in the financial instruments exchange 
business are based on the prices quoted by the financial institutions from 
which they are purchased.
 Information on money held in trust by classification is included in 
Note 6, “Money Held in Trust.”

Securities
The fair value of equity securities is determined based on the prices 
quoted by the exchange and the fair value of bonds is determined based 
on the prices quoted by the exchange or the financial institutions from 
which they are purchased. The fair value of investment trusts is deter-
mined based on the publicly available price.
 For privately placed guaranteed bonds held by the Bank, the fair 
value is based on the present value of expected future cash flows, which 
are adjusted to reflect default risk, amounts to be collected from collater-
al, guarantees and guarantee fees, and discounted at the market interest 
rate as of the date of evaluation.
 Information on securities by classification is included in Note 5, 
“Trading securities and Securities.”
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Loans and bills discounted
For loans with variable interest rates, the fair value approximates the 
carrying value because it reflects the market interest rate in the short 
term as long as the credit status of the borrower has not changed sig-
nificantly. For loans with fixed interest rates, the fair value is calculated 
by bundling the type of loans and the internal credit rating using the 
expected future cash flows, which are discounted by the risk free rate 
and certain management costs. Certain consumer loans, such as home 
mortgages, fair value is calculated by discounting the total loan princi-
pal with the same rate as a similar loan. For consumer loans that mature 
within one year, the fair value approximates the carrying value due to 
their short-term maturities. In addition, as for loans to legally bankrupt 
borrowers, virtually bankrupt borrowers, and potentially bankrupt bor-
rowers, the fair value is calculated by deducting the allowance, which is 
calculated based on the present value of the estimated future cash flow or 
the estimated collection of cash from collateral and guarantee, from the 
balance in the consolidated balance sheet date. Therefore, the book value 
approximates the fair value. Regarding loans that do not have repay-
ment terms because the outstanding amount of the loan is limited to the 
value of collateral assets, the fair value approximates the carrying value 
because of the estimated repayment periods and conditions of interest.

Liabilities
Deposits and negotiable certificates of deposit
For demand deposits, the amount payable on demand as of the con-
solidated balance sheet date (i.e., the carrying amount) is considered to 
be the fair value. Time deposits are grouped by maturity lengths and 
their fair value is calculated by discounting future cash flows with the 
same interest rate as that of accepted new deposits. For the deposits and 
negotiable certificates of deposits with the repayment period within one 
year, the fair value approximates the carrying value due to their short-
term maturities.

Payables under repurchase agreements and payables under securities lending 
transactions 
The contract terms of payables under repurchase agreements and pay-
ables under securities lending transactions are short (within one year). 
Therefore, the fair value approximates the carrying value due to their 
short-term maturities. 

Borrowed money 
For borrowed money with variable interest rates, the fair value approxi-
mates the carrying value because it reflects the market interest rate in 
the short term and the credit status of the Bank and its consolidated 
subsidiaries has not changed significantly since inception.
For borrowed money with fixed interest rates, the fair value is calculated 
by discounting the total amount of principal and interest by an interest 
rate that takes into account the credit risk of the Bank and its consoli-
dated subsidiaries for each classification based on the type and duration 
of the borrowed money. Also, for borrowed money that mature within 
one year, the fair value approximates the carrying value due to its short-
term maturities. 

Derivatives
Information regarding the fair value for derivatives is included in Note 28.

(b) Financial instruments whose fair value cannot be reliably determined

Carrying amount

Millions of Yen Thousands of 
U.S. Dollars

2020 2019 2020

Unlisted equity securities ¥ 6,501 ¥ 6,528 $ 59,736
Investments in unconsolidated 
  subsidiaries 640 637 5,881

Others 19,582 17,539 179,932
Total ¥26,723 ¥24,704  $245,549

Since the fair values of unlisted stocks cannot be reliably determined, 
their fair values are not disclosed.

(5) Maturity analysis for financial assets, securities and financial liabili-
ties with contractual maturities

Millions of Yen

March 31, 2020 Due in One 
Year or Less

Due after One 
Year through 

Five Years

Due after Five 
Years through 

Ten Years

Due after
Ten Years

Cash and due from banks ¥ 565,344 — — —
Securities:
Held-to-maturity securities:
Debt securities:

Japanese corporate bonds 9,205 ¥ 35,674 ¥ 7,916 ¥ 274
Available-for-sale securities
  with contractual maturities:
Debt securities:

Japanese government bonds 49,800 45,400 55,000 30,000
Japanese local govern-
ment bonds 25,502 39,254 268,051 950

Japanese corporate bonds 7,543 29,811 24,247 100,784
Other 10,904 78,047 155,295 122,375

Loans and bills discounted (*1) 874,200 1,220,656 862,053 1,304,329
Total ¥1,542,498 ¥1,448,842 ¥1,372,562 ¥1,558,712

Millions of Yen

March 31, 2020 Due in One 
Year or Less

Due after One 
Year through 

Five Years

Due after Five 
Years through 

Ten Years

Due after
Ten Years

Deposits ¥5,137,444 ¥473,210 ¥5 —
Negotiable certificates of deposit 38,050 — — —
Payables under repurchase 
  agreements 140,754 — — —

Payables under securities 
  lending transactions 15,153 — — —

Borrowed money 98,222 110,199 — —
Total ¥5,429,623 ¥583,409 ¥5 —

Millions of Yen

March 31, 2019 Due in One 
Year or Less

Due after One 
Year through 

Five Years

Due after Five 
Years through 

Ten Years

Due after
Ten Years

Cash and due from banks ¥ 424,652 — — —
Securities:
Held-to-maturity securities:
Debt securities:

Japanese corporate bonds 7,740 ¥ 28,848 ¥ 5,440 ¥ 340
Available-for-sale securities
  with contractual maturities:
Debt securities:

Japanese government bonds 192,100 93,200 55,000 5,000
Japanese local  
  government bonds 32,977 42,801 186,543 1,221

Japanese corporate bonds 16,145 26,032 16,054 83,290
Other 8,683 79,877 130,051 155,972

Loans and bills discounted (*1) 902,330 1,245,147 843,676 1,224,681
Total ¥1,584,627 ¥1,515,905 ¥1,236,764 ¥1,470,504

Millions of Yen

March 31, 2019 Due in One 
Year or Less

Due after One 
Year through 

Five Years

Due after Five 
Years through 

Ten Years

Due after
Ten Years

Deposits ¥4,979,674 ¥512,549 ¥4 —
Negotiable certificates of deposit 55,600 — — —
Payables under repurchase 
  agreements 186,071 — — —

Payables under securities 
  lending transactions 105,931 — — —

Borrowed money 51,764 11,064 — —
Total ¥5,379,040 ¥523,613 ¥4 —

Thousands of U.S. Dollars

March 31, 2020 Due in One 
Year or Less

Due after One 
Year through 

Five Years

Due after Five 
Years through 

Ten Years

Due after
Ten Years

Cash and due from banks $ 5,194,744 — — —
Securities:
Held-to-maturity securities:
Debt securities:

Japanese corporate bonds 84,581 $ 327,796 $ 72,737 $ 2,518
Available-for-sale securities
  with contractual maturities:
Debt securities:

Japanese government bonds 457,594 417,164 505,376 275,660
Japanese local  
  government bonds 234,329 360,691 2,463,025 8,729

Japanese corporate bonds 69,310 273,923 222,797 926,068
Other 100,193 717,146 1,426,950 1,124,460

Loans and bills discounted (*1) 8,032,712 11,216,172 7,921,097 11,985,013
Total $14,173,463 $13,312,892 $12,611,982 $14,322,448

Thousands of U.S. Dollars

March 31, 2020 Due in One 
Year or Less

Due after One 
Year through 

Five Years

Due after Five 
Years through 

Ten Years

Due after
Ten Years

Deposits $47,206,138 $4,348,158 $46 —
Negotiable certificates of deposit 349,628 — — —
Payables under repurchase 
  agreements 1,293,338 — — —

Payables under securities 
  lending transactions 139,236 — — —

Borrowed money 902,527 1,012,579 — —
Total $49,890,867 $5,360,737 $46 —

(*1) Loans and bills discounted whose cash flows cannot be estimated, 
such as “legal bankruptcy,” “virtual bankruptcy,” and “possible bank-
ruptcy” loans amounting to ¥60,566 million ($556,519 thousand) 
and ¥62,104 million as of March 31, 2020 and 2019, respectively, and 
loans and bills discounted with no contractual maturities, amounting to 
¥23,770 million ($218,414 thousand) and ¥26,128 million as of March 
31, 2020 and 2019, respectively, are not included.

Please see Note 14 for annual maturities of borrowed money.

27. COMMITMENTS AND CONTINGENT LIABILITIES
Commitment line contracts on overdrafts and loans are agreements to 
make loans to customers when they apply for borrowing up to a pre-
scribed amount, as long as there is no violation of any condition in the 
contracts.
 The total amounts of unused open commitments as of March 31, 
2020 and 2019, were ¥1,359,616 million ($12,493,026 thousand) and 
¥1,412,428 million, respectively. Multi-purpose accounts included in 
the unused open commitments as of March 31, 2020 and 2019, were 
¥577,274 million ($5,304,365 thousand) and ¥606,165 million, respec-
tively. The amounts of unused commitments whose original contract 
terms were within one year or unconditionally cancelable at any time as 
of March 31, 2020 and 2019, were ¥1,327,570 million ($12,198,567 
thousand) and ¥1,382,374 million, respectively.
 Since many of these commitments are expected to expire without 
being drawn upon, the total amount of unused commitments does not 
necessarily represent actual future cash flow requirements. Many of these 
commitments have clauses enabling the Bank and certain subsidiaries to 
reject the loans to customers or reduce the contract amounts of commit-
ment, in the event monetary conditions have changed and the Bank and 
certain subsidiaries need to secure claims, or other considerable events 
have occurred.
 In addition, if necessary, the Bank and certain subsidiaries can re-
quest the customers to pledge collateral such as premises and securities 
at the execution of the contracts. After execution, the Bank and certain 
subsidiaries periodically evaluate the customers’ financial position based 
upon the Bank’s internal policy, and take necessary measures to manage 
the credit exposures, such as revising the terms of contracts or securing 
the claims.

28. DERIVATIVE INFORMATION
The Bank enters into swaps related to interest rates, foreign exchange 
forward contracts, swap and option contracts related to currencies, over-
the-counter bond options and stock index options contracts related to 
securities.

Derivative transactions to which hedge accounting is not applied 
as of March 31, 2020 and 2019

Millions of Yen

March 31, 2020 Contract 
Amount

Contract 
Amount Due 
after One Year

Fair Value Unrealized
Gains/(Losses)

Over-the-counter
  Interest-related contracts:

Interest rate swap:
Fixed rate receipt,
  variable rate payment ¥ 3,687 ¥ 3,687 ¥ 182 ¥ 182

Variable rate receipt,
  fixed rate payment 3,687 3,687 (62) (62)

Over-the-counter
  Currency-related contracts:

Currency swap 209,188 158,773 675 1,181
Foreign exchange forward:

Sell 27,732 109 (362) (362)
Buy 12,426 — 176 176

Currency option:
Sell 121,539 84,206 (5,208) 2,458
Buy 121,986 84,812 5,219 (1,223)

Other:
Sell — — — —
Buy — — — —

Listed 
  Stock-related contracts:

Index option:
Sell — — — —
Buy — — — —

Over-the-counter
  Bond-related contracts:

Bond option:
Sell — — — —
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Millions of Yen

March 31, 2019 Contract 
Amount

Contract 
Amount Due 
after One Year

Fair Value Unrealized
Gains/(Losses)

Over-the-counter
  Interest-related contracts:

Interest rate swap:
Fixed rate receipt,
  variable rate payment ¥ 1,327 ¥ 1,327 ¥ 86 ¥ 86

Variable rate receipt,
  fixed rate payment 1,327 1,327 (18) (18)

Over-the-counter
  Currency-related contracts:

Currency swap 142,702 116,638 (175) 82
Foreign exchange forward:

Sell 36,425 67 (24) (24)
Buy 15,515 — 108 108

Currency option:
Sell 114,715 77,777 (5,131) 1,942
Buy 116,284 78,663 5,127 (850)

Other:
Sell — — — —
Buy — — — —

Listed 
  Stock-related contracts:

Index option:
Sell — — — —
Buy — — — —

Over-the-counter
  Bond-related contracts:

Bond option:
Sell — — — —

Thousands of U.S. Dollars

March 31, 2020 Contract 
Amount

Contract 
Amount Due 
after One Year

Fair Value Unrealized 
Gains/(Losses)

Over-the-counter
  Interest-related contracts:

Interest rate swap:
Fixed rate receipt,
  variable rate payment $ 33,879 $ 33,879 $ 1,672 $ 1,672

Variable rate receipt,
  fixed rate payment 33,879 33,879 (570) (570)

Over-the-counter
  Currency-related contracts:

Currency swap 1,922,154 1,458,908 6,202 10,852
Foreign exchange forward:

Sell 254,819 1,002 (3,326) (3,326)
Buy 114,178 — 1,617 1,617

Currency option:
Sell 1,116,778 773,739 (47,854) 22,586
Buy 1,120,886 779,307 47,956 (11,238)

Other:
Sell — — — —
Buy — — — —

Listed
  Stock-related contracts:

Index option:
Sell — — — —
Buy — — — —

Over-the-counter
  Bond-related contracts:

Bond option:
Sell — — — —

Notes:
1.  Derivative transactions are valued at market and the gains/losses are 

recognized in the consolidated statement of income.
2.  Market values of exchange-traded transactions are based on closing 

prices on the exchange markets, such as the Tokyo and Osaka Interna-
tional Financial Futures Exchange. Market values of over-the-counter 
contracts are based on valuation techniques such as the discounted 
cash flow method and the option pricing calculation models.

Derivative transactions to which hedge accounting is applied as of 
March 31, 2020 and 2019

Millions of Yen

2020
Hedged 

Item

Contract 
Amount

Contract 
Amount Due 

After One Year
Fair Value

Principal method

SecuritiesInterest rate swap
Receive float/ 
  Pay fixed ¥15,000 ¥15,000 ¥(249)

Thousands of U.S. Dollars

2020
Hedged 

Item

Contract 
Amount

Contract 
Amount Due 

After One Year
Fair Value

Principal method

SecuritiesInterest rate swap
Receive float/ 
  Pay fixed $137,830 $137,830 $(2,288)

 There were no derivative transactions to which hedge accounting 
was applied as of March 31, 2019.

Notes:
1.  Deferred hedge accounting is applied principally in accordance with 

“Treatment of Accounting and Auditing in Applying Accounting 
Standard for Financial Instruments in the Banking Industry” (JICPA 
Industry Audit Committee Report No. 24) issued by the Japanese 
Institute of Certified Public Accountants.

2.  Market values of exchange-traded transactions are based on closing 
prices on the exchange markets, such as the Tokyo and Osaka Interna-
tional Financial Futures Exchange. Market values of over-the-counter 
contracts are based on valuation techniques such as the discounted 
cash flow method and the option pricing calculation models.

29. COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
The components of other comprehensive (loss) income for the years 
ended March 31, 2020 and 2019, were as follows:

Millions of Yen Thousands of 
U.S. Dollars

2020 2019 2020
Unrealized (loss) gain on 
  available-for-sale securities:

Gains arising during the year ¥(17,795) ¥2,230 $(163,512)
Reclassification adjustments 
  to profit or loss (1,668) (902) (15,327)

Amount before income tax effect (19,463) 1,328 (178,839)
Income tax effect 5,599 (560) 51,448
Total (13,864) 768 (127,391)

Deferred losses on hedges:
Adjustments arising during the year (249) — (2,288)
Reclassification adjustments 
  to profit or loss — — —

Amount before income tax effect (249) — (2,288)
Income tax effect 75 — 689
Total (174) — (1,599)

Defined retirement benefit plans:
Adjustments arising during the year (2,028) (451) (18,635)
Reclassification adjustments 
  to profit or loss (207) 504 (1,902)

Amount before income tax effect (2,235) 53 (20,537)
Income tax effect 669 (16) 6,148
Total (1,566) 37 (14,389)
Total other comprehensive 
  (loss) income ¥(15,604) ¥  805 $(143,379)

30. PER SHARE INFORMATION
1. Net income per share
Reconciliation of the differences between basic and diluted net income 
per share (“EPS”) for the years ended March 31, 2020 and 2019, was as 
follows:

Millions of 
Yen

Thousands of 
Shares Yen U.S. Dollars

Net income 
attributable 
to owners of 

parent

Weighted 
Average Shares EPS

For the year ended March 31, 2020:
Net income attributable to 
  owners of parent ¥12,862

Amount not attributable to 
  common shareholders —

Basic EPS—Net income 
  available to common 
  shareholders

12,862 37,366 ¥344.22 $3.16

Effect of dilutive securities:
Stock acquisition rights 56

56
Diluted EPS—Net income for 
  computation ¥12,862 37,422 ¥343.71 $3.16

Millions of 
Yen

Thousands of 
Shares Yen

Net income 
attributable 
to owners of 

parent

Weighted 
Average Shares EPS

For the year ended March 31, 2019:
Net income attributable to 
  owners of parent ¥10,658

Amount not attributable to 
  common shareholders —

Basic EPS—Net income 
  available to common 
  shareholders

10,658 37,358 ¥285.29

Effect of dilutive securities:
Stock acquisition rights 49

49
Diluted EPS—Net income for 
  computation ¥10,658 37,407 ¥284.92

2. Net assets per share
Net assets per share as of March 31, 2020 and 2019, were ¥9,368.09 
($86.08) and ¥9,477.86, respectively. 
 Net assets per share of common stock as of March 31, 2020 and 
2019, were calculated based on the following:

Millions of Yen Thousands of 
U.S. Dollars

2020 2019 2020
Total net assets ¥366,404 ¥370,199 $3,366,755
Deductions from total net assets:

Stock acquisition rights 161 160 1,479
Noncontrolling interests 16,172 15,970 148,598

Net assets attributable to common 
  stock at the end of the fiscal year 350,071 354,069 3,216,678

Number of shares of common stock 
  at the end of the fiscal year used for 
  the calculation of net assets per share 
  (shares in thousands)

37,368 37,357

31. SUBSEQUENT EVENTS
Appropriation of Retained Earnings
On June 19 2020, the Bank’s shareholders authorized an appropriation 
of retained earnings as follows: 

Millions of Yen Thousands of
U.S. Dollars

Year-end cash dividends:
¥45.00 ($0.41) per share on 
  common stock ¥1,682 $15,455

Revisions to Retirement and Pension Plans
The Bank plans to revise its contributory funded defined benefit pension 
plan on October 1, 2020. These revisions include lowering the interest 
rate used to calculate benefits. As of July 10, 2020, the relevant parties 
have been made aware of the changes to rules and regulations pursuant 
to these revisions.
 Regarding the accounting treatment of these revisions, the Bank 
intends to apply “Accounting for Transfer between Retirement Benefit 
Plans” (ASBJ Guidance No. 1, December 16, 2016) and “Practical 
Solution on Accounting for Transfer between Retirement Benefit Plans” 
(Practical Issues Task Force (PITF) No. 2, February 7, 2007), and is cur-
rently evaluating the amount of financial impact of this treatment. 
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32. SEGMENT INFORMATION
Under ASBJ Statement No. 17, “Accounting Standard for Segment Information Disclosures” and ASBJ Guidance No. 20, “Guidance on Accounting 
Standard for Segment Information Disclosures,” an entity is required to report financial and descriptive information about its reportable segments. 
Reportable segments are operating segments or aggregations of operating segments that meet specified criteria. Operating segments are components of 
an entity about which separate financial information is available and such information is evaluated regularly by the chief operating decision maker in 
deciding how to allocate resources and in assessing performance. Generally, segment information is required to be reported on the same basis as is used 
internally for evaluating operating segment performance and deciding how to allocate resources to operating segments.

1. Description of reportable segments 
The Group’s reportable segments are those for which separate financial information is available and regular evaluation by the Group’s management is 
being performed in order to decide how resources are allocated among the Group. 
 The Group consists of the Bank and seven (six in 2019) consolidated subsidiaries. The Group provides banking services-based comprehensive fi-
nancial services and leasing business. The Group operates its business by units which consists of some branches located in a certain range. However, the 
Group discloses these units as a segment of the Banking business because their economic nature is similar to each other. Therefore, the Group consists 
of two reportable segments: banking business and lease business.
 The Banking business is operated by the Bank and provides various services such as deposit-taking and lending services, trading securities, securi-
ties investment, domestic exchange, foreign exchange, managing bonds, a derivatives business and other related businesses at headquarters and branches 
of the Bank.
 The Lease business is operated by Juroku Lease Co., Ltd. It provides leasing business to meet local customers’ needs.
 Juroku TT Securities Co., Ltd., which has been included in the scope of consolidation from the year ended March 31, 2020, is included in “Other” 
in the segment information.

2. Methods of measurement for the amounts of income, profit, assets and other items for each reportable segment
The accounting policies of each reportable segment are consistent with those disclosed in Note 2, “Summary of Significant Accounting Policies.”
 As noted in “Changes in Presentation,” in the Banking Business, a portion of insurance-related dividend income, which was previously presented as 
“Other Income,” has been presented as “Fees and Commissions” and “General and Administrative Expense” from the year ended March 31, 2020, and 
the segment information for the year ended March 31, 2019 has been reclassified accordingly. 

3. Information about income, profit, assets, liabilities and other items
Millions of Yen

Reportable Segment
2020 Banking Lease Total Other Total Reconciliations Consolidated
Ordinary income:

(1) Outside customers ¥ 75,843 ¥24,460 ¥ 100,303 ¥ 6,557 ¥ 106,860 — ¥ 106,860
(2) Intersegment transactions 813 675 1,488 1,231 2,719 ¥ (2,719) —

Total ¥ 76,656 ¥25,135 ¥ 101,791 ¥ 7,788 ¥ 109,579 ¥ (2,719) ¥ 106,860
Segment profit 18,524 986 19,510 573 20,083 (586) 19,497
Segment assets 6,418,957 84,448 6,503,405 54,058 6,557,463 (85,009) 6,472,454
Other:

Depreciation ¥ 3,066 ¥ 549 ¥ 3,615 ¥ 177 ¥ 3,792 ¥ 131 ¥ 3,923
Amortization of goodwill 245 — 245 155 400 — 400
Interest income 54,820 179 54,999 189 55,188 (426) 54,762
Interest expense 2,853 201 3,054 15 3,069 (137) 2,932
Provision (reversal) for possible loan losses 3,140 (21) 3,119 564 3,683 — 3,683
Increase in premises and equipment and intangible assets 1,326 516 1,842 52 1,894 195 2,089

Millions of Yen
Reportable Segment

2019 Banking Lease Total Other Total Reconciliations Consolidated
Ordinary income:

(1) Outside customers ¥ 75,997 ¥ 23,169 ¥ 99,166 ¥ 5,214 ¥ 104,380 — ¥ 104,380
(2) Intersegment transactions 554 268 822 1,166 1,988 ¥ (1,988) —

Total ¥ 76,551 ¥ 23,437 ¥ 99,988 ¥ 6,380 ¥ 106,368 ¥ (1,988) ¥ 104,380
Segment profit 14,611 665 15,276 1,001 16,277 1 16,278
Segment assets 6,316,693 79,555 6,396,248 45,666 6,441,914 (72,757) 6,369,157
Other:

Depreciation ¥ 3,204 ¥ 507 ¥ 3,711 ¥ 82 ¥ 3,793 ¥ 129 ¥ 3,922
Amortization of goodwill 245 — 245 — 245 — 245
Interest income 53,615 70 53,685 210 53,895 (132) 53,763
Interest expense 3,780 188 3,968 16 3,984 (116) 3,868
Provision (reversal) for possible loan losses 1,898 (79) 1,819 303 2,122 — 2,122
Increase in premises and equipment and intangible assets 850 552 1,402 157 1,559 72 1,631

Thousands of U.S. Dollars
Reportable Segment

2020 Banking Lease Total Other Total Reconciliations Consolidated
Ordinary income:

(1) Outside customers $ 696,894 $ 224,754 $ 921,648 $ 60,250 $ 981,898 — $ 981,898
(2) Intersegment transactions 7,471 6,202 13,673 11,311 24,984 $ (24,984) —

Total $ 704,365 $ 230,956 $ 935,321 $ 71,561 $ 1,006,882 $ (24,984) $ 981,898
Segment profit 170,210 9,060 179,270 5,265 184,535 (5,385) 179,150
Segment assets 58,981,503 775,963 59,757,466 496,720 60,254,186 (781,118) 59,473,068
Other:

Depreciation $ 28,172 $ 5,045 $ 33,217 $ 1,626 $ 34,843 $ 1,204 $ 36,047
Amortization of goodwill 2,251 — 2,251 1,424 3,675 — 3,675
Interest income 503,721 1,645 505,366 1,737 507,103 (3,914) 503,189
Interest expense 26,215 1,847 28,062 138 28,200 (1,259) 26,941
Provision (reversal) for possible loan losses 28,852 (193) 28,659 5,183 33,842 — 33,842
Increase in premises and equipment and intangible assets 12,184 4,741 16,925 478 17,403 1,792 19,195

Notes:
1.  Ordinary income represents total income less certain extraordinary income included in “Other income” in the accompanying consolidated statement 

of income.
2. “Other” includes business segments of financial instruments business, credit cards, computer services and credit guarantees.
3. Reconciliations mainly represent elimination of intra-segment transactions.
4.  Segment profit is adjusted to reconcile to income before income taxes less certain extraordinary items in the accompanying consolidated statement of 

income.

4. Associated Information
(1) Information about services

Millions of Yen
2020 Lending Service Securities Services Leasing Other Total
Ordinary income:
  Outside customers ¥40,780 ¥19,842 ¥24,300 ¥21,938 ¥106,860

Millions of Yen
2019 Lending Service Securities Services Leasing Other Total
Ordinary income:
  Outside customers ¥40,854 ¥19,653 ¥22,737 ¥21,136 ¥104,380

Thousands of U.S. Dollars
2020 Lending Service Securities Services Leasing Other Total
Ordinary income:
  Outside customers $374,713 $182,321 $223,284 $201,580 $981,898

(2) Geographical information
(a) Operating revenues
This information is not presented because the Group’s revenues in Japan account for more than 90% of revenues in the consolidated statement of income.
(b) Property and equipment
This information is not presented because the Group’s property and equipment in Japan account for more than 90% of property and equipment in the 
consolidated balance sheet.

(3) Information by major customer
This information is not presented because there are no customers for which income account for more than 10% of revenues in the consolidated state-
ment of income.

(4) Information about impairment loss by reportable segment
Millions of Yen

2020 Banking Lease Other Elimination/Corporate Total
Impairment loss on long-lived assets ¥133 — — — ¥133

Millions of Yen
2019 Banking Lease Other Elimination/Corporate Total
Impairment loss on long-lived assets ¥189 — — — ¥189

Thousands of U.S. Dollars
2020 Banking Lease Other Elimination/Corporate Total
Impairment loss on long-lived assets $1,222 — — — $1,222
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(5) Information about goodwill and negative goodwill by reportable segment
Millions of Yen

2020 Banking Lease Other Elimination/Corporate Total
Amortization of goodwill ¥ 245 — ¥ 155 — ¥ 400
Goodwill at March 31, 2020 2,630 — 1,920 — 4,550
Gain on negative goodwill — — — — —

Millions of Yen
2019 Banking Lease Other Elimination/Corporate Total
Amortization of goodwill ¥ 245 — — — ¥ 245
Goodwill at March 31, 2019 2,875 — — — 2,875
Gain on negative goodwill — — — — —

Thousands of U.S. Dollars
2020 Banking Lease Other Elimination/Corporate Total
Amortization of goodwill $ 2,251 — $ 1,424 — $ 3,675
Goodwill at March 31, 2020 24,166 — 17,642 — 41,808
Gain on negative goodwill — — — — —

Note:  “Other” represents goodwill on a consolidated basis recognized due to the acquisition of Juroku TT Securities, Co., Ltd. Please see Note 3. for 
details.
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Date of Establishment:

October 1877

Authorized Shares:

46,000 thousand shares

Shares of Common Stock Issued and Outstanding:

37,924 thousand shares

Stock Listed:

First Sections of the Tokyo and Nagoya Stock Exchanges

Paid-in Capital:

¥36,839 million

Number of Common Stock Shareholders:

14,728

Number of Employees:

2,813

Name Business Lines Established
Capital

(¥ Millions)
Equity
Stake*

Equity 
Stake of 

subsidiaries*

Juroku Business Service Co., Ltd. Clerical work service Jan. 1979 10 100.0 —

Juroku Research Institute Co., Ltd.
Business consulting service
Survey and research service

June 2013 50 100.0 —

Juroku Tokai Tokyo Securities Co., Ltd. Financial instruments service Apr. 2018 3000 60.0 —

Juroku Card Co., Ltd. Credit card flotation service Aug. 1982 55 49.7 43.9

Juroku Lease Co., Ltd.
Leasing service
Venture capital service

Mar. 1975 102 49.8 30.3

Juroku Computer Service Co., Ltd. Computer system development service Aug. 1985 245 43.0 56.9

Juroku Credit Guarantee Co., Ltd. Credit guaranty service May 1979 58 49.8 16.3

*Voting rights held by the Bank, or subsidiaries excluding the Bank, as a percentage of total voting rights.

10 Principal Shareholders:

Japan Trustee Services Bank, Ltd.(Trust account) 

Japan Trustee Services Bank, Ltd.(Trust account 9)

The Master Trust Bank of Japan, Ltd.(Trust Account) 

The Juroku Bank Employee Shareholders’ Association 

MUFG Bank, Ltd. 

Fuji Baking Group Co., Ltd. 

Sompo Japan Insurance Inc.

Meiji Yasuda Life Insurance Company

Tokyo Marine and Nichido Fire Insurance Co., Ltd.

Seino Holdings Co., Ltd.
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Head Office
8-26, Kandamachi, Gifu-shi,
Gifu 500-8516, Japan
Telephone: +81-58-265-2111

Corporate Business Division International Office
8-26, Kandamachi, Gifu-shi,
Gifu 500-8516, Japan P.O. Box 40
Telephone: +81-58-265-2111
Facsimile: +81-58-266-1698
SWIFT Address: JUROJPJ T

Head of Office
Takayuki Nishikawa

Overseas Network
Shanghai Representative Office
18th Floor, Hang Seng Bank Tower, 
1000 Lujiazui Ring Road, Pudong New Area, 
Shanghai, People’s Republic of China
Telephone: +86-21-6841-1600
Facsimile: +86-21-6841-1881

Chief Representative
Noriaki Murase

Representative Office Registered in Singapore
50 Raffles Place #38-06 Singapore Land 
Tower, Singapore 048623
Telephone: +65-6222-6616
Facsimile: +65-6532-6616

Chief Representative
Kunihiro Tomita

Bangkok Representative Office
Unit 6 25th Floor CRC Tower, All Seasons 
Place, 87/2 Wireless Road, Lumpini, Pha-
tumwan, Bangkok, Thailand 10110
Telephone: +66-2655-8016
Facsimile: +66-2685-3016

Chief Representative
Yukiyasu Horie

Hanoi Representative Office
Unit 1206, Pacific Place, 
83B Ly Thuong Kiet Street,
Hoan Kiem District, Hanoi City, Vietnam
Telephone: +84-24-3927-1616
Facsimile: +84-24-3927-1166

Chief Representative
Hiroyuki Kawase

Branches Handling
Foreign Exchange
Business

(15 Offices)

Head Office
8-26, Kandamachi, Gifu-shi, Gifu
Telephone: +81-58-265-2111

Ogaki Branch
1-26, Takayacho, Ogaki-shi, Gifu
Telephone: +81-584-78-2161

Seki Branch
51-1, Higashikashiage, Seki-shi, Gifu
Telephone: +81-575-22-2016

Tajimi Branch
1-24, Sakaemachi, Tajimi-shi, Gifu
Telephone: +81-572-22-1301

Nakatsugawa Branch
2-5-1, Ootamachi, Nakatsugawa-shi, Gifu
Telephone: +81-573-65-3116

Takayama Branch
136, Simo Sannomachi,
Takayama-shi, Gifu
Telephone: +81-577-32-1600

Ichinomiya Branch
1-2-5, Sakae,
Ichinomiya-shi, Aichi
Telephone: +81-586-73-5116

Nagoya-ekimae Branch
3-28-12, Meieki,
Nakamura-ku, Nagoya-shi, Aichi
Telephone: +81-52-561-5431

Nagoya Main Office
3-1-1, Nishiki, Naka-ku,
Nagoya-shi, Aichi
Telephone: +81-52-961-8111

Ozone Branch
3-5-23, Ozone, Kita-ku,
Nagoya-shi, Aichi
Telephone: +81-52-911-6116

Sakurayama Branch
5-91, Sakurayamacho, Showa-ku,
Nagoya-shi, Aichi
Telephone: +81-52-851-9216

Rokubancho Branch
2-2-22, Yonban, Atsuta-ku,
Nagoya-shi, Aichi
Telephone: +81-52-652-6571

Kariya Branch
6-35, Wakamatsu-cho, Kariya-shi, Aichi
Telephone: +81-566-21-1611

Osaka Branch
2-3-8, Honmachi, Chuo-ku,
Osaka-shi, Osaka
Telephone: +81-6-6264-1600

Tokyo Branch
4-1-10, Nihombashi Honcho,
Chuo-ku, Tokyo
Telephone: +81-3-3242-1661

Tokyo Branch

Aichi Prefecture (53)

Gifu Prefecture (106)

Osaka Branch
Total 162Domestic Of�ces

Mie Prefecture (1)

Shanghai

Bangkok

Singapore

Hanoi
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